
  

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
September 27, 2022,  9:00 a.m. Administration Building 

Valleyview, AB 
 

 

 
#1 CALL TO ORDER 

 
  

#2 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

  

#3 MINUTES   
  3.1 Special Council Meeting held September 19, 2022 

 
3 

  3.2 Regular Council Minutes held September 13, 2022 
 

7 

  3.3 Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

 

#4 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

No Public Hearing   

#5 DELEGATION            
 

No Delegations  

#6 BYLAWS                     6.1 Bylaw 22-919 Off-Site Levy Repeal Bylaw 
 

24 

  6.2 Bylaw 22-920 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Redesignate 
an ±11-ha (28-ac) area within NW 4-69-19-W5 from Agricultural 
One (A-1) to Agricultural Two (A-2) 
 

50 

  6.3 Bylaw 22-921 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Redesignate a 
±4.86-ha (12.0-ac) area within Plan 1024120; 1; 1 (Part of SW 5-
70-6-W6) from Agricultural Two (A-2) to Direct Control (DC) 
 

63 

#7 BUSINESS 7.1 High-speed internet for Greenview Ratepayers 
 

75 

  7.2 Mountain Métis Nation Association (MMNA) Land Sale 
 

94 

    



  

 

7.3 Mozart Mission Sponsorship 
 

146 

  7.4 Violence Threat Risk Assessment (VTRA) Level Two Training 
Sponsorship 
 

169 

  7.5 Notice of Motion – Efficacy of Bounty Programs & Potential 
options 

176 
 

#8 NOTICE OF MOTION   

#9 CLOSED SESSION  
  

No Closed Session  

#10 MEMBERS 
REPORTS/EXPENSE 
CLAIMS 

 

• Ward 1 
• Ward 2 
• Ward 3 
• Ward 4 
• Ward 5 
• Ward 6 
• Ward 7 
• Ward 8 
• Ward 8 
• Ward 9 
• Ward 9  

 

178 

#11 ADJOURNMENT 
 

  

 



Minutes of a 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
Public Service Building 

Grande Cache, Alberta, on Monday, September 19, 2022 

# 1: 
CALL TO ORDER 

Reeve Tyler Olsen called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 

PRESENT 

ATTENDING 

Ward 9   Reeve Tyler Olsen 
Ward 8         Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
Ward 1     Councillor Winston Delorme 
Ward 2    Councillor Ryan Ratzlaff 
Ward 3   Councillor Sally Rosson 
Ward 4     Councillor Dave Berry 
Ward 5   Councillor Dale Smith 
Ward 6    Councillor Tom Burton 
Ward 7       Councillor Jennifer Scott 
Ward 8   Councillor Christine Schlief 
Ward 9       Councillor Duane Didow 

Chief Administrative Officer                Stacey Wabick 
Director, Community Services  Michelle Honeyman 
Director, Infrastructure and Engineering           Roger Autio 
Director, Corporate Services                Ed Kaemingh 
Director, Planning & Ec. Dev          Martino Verheaghe 

Recording Secretary Natalie Bartlett 

ABSENT  

#2:  
AGENDA 

MOTION: 22.09. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 
That Council adopt the Monday, September 19, 2022, Special Council Meeting 
agenda as presented. 

For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Didow, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry 
Absent: Councillor Dale Smith  

 CARRIED 

#3 BYLAWS No Bylaws 

3



 Special Council Meeting Minutes  September 19, 2022 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 2 

 
#4 NEW BUSINESS 4.1 Budget Expectations 
 MOTION: 22.09. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 

That Council accept the Greenview budget expectations discussion for 
information, as presented. 
 
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Didow, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry 
Absent: Councillor Dale Smith  
                                                                                                           CARRIED 
 

 Councillor Dale Smith entered the meeting at 1:35 p.m.  
 

 4.2 2023 Budget Update 
2023 BUDGET UPDATE MOTION: 22.09. Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 

That Council accepts the presentation on the 2023 Budget for information, 
as presented. 
 
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Didow, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Olsen recessed the meeting at 2:40 p.m. 
Reeve Olsen reconvened the meeting at 2:50 p.m. 

 4.3 Tax Rate Bylaw Presentation 
TAX RATE 
PRESENTATION 

MOTION: 22.09. Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT 
That Council accept the presentation on tax rate bylaw for information, as 
presented. 
 
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Didow, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

4



 Special Council Meeting Minutes  September 19, 2022 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 3 

 
4.4 Seasonal Fleet Rental 

SEASONAL FLEET 
RENTAL 

MOTION: 22.09. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 
That Council accept the information on renting fleet equipment for 
information, as presented. 
 
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Didow, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 
 

 4.5 2022 Operating Budget 
2022 OPERATING 
BUDGET 

MOTION: 22.09. Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT 
That Council accept the 2022 Approved Operating Budget for information, as 
presented. 
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Didow, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 4.6 2022 to 2026 Capital Budget  
 MOTION: 22.09. Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF 

That Council accept the 2022 to 2026 Approved Capital Budget for 
information, as presented. 
 
For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Didow, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry 
Absent: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith  
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

#4 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
4.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 MOTION: 22.09. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council adjourn the Special Council Meeting at 3:48 P.M. 
 
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Didow, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
   
 

5



 Special Council Meeting Minutes  September 19, 2022 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
: 

 
 
 
__________________________________                                      ______________________________ 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER                                                      CHAIR 

6



Minutes of a  
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
Greenview Administration Building, 

Valleyview, Alberta on Tuesday, September 13, 2022 

#1 
CALL TO ORDER 

Councillor Burton called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

PRESENT Ward 9 
Ward 8 
Ward 1 
Ward 2 
Ward 3 
Ward 4  
Ward 5 
Ward 6 
Ward 7 
Ward 8 
Ward 9 

Reeve Tyler Olsen (absent) 
Deputy Reeve Bill Smith (absent) 
       Councillor Winston Delorme  

Councillor Ryan Ratzlaff 
Councillor Sally Rosson 

Councillor Dave Berry 
Councillor Dale Smith 

Councillor Tom Burton 
Councillor Jennifer Scott 

Councillor Christine Schlief 
Councillor Duane Didow 

ATTENDING Chief Administrative Officer        
Director, Corporate Services 
Director, Infrastructure and Engineering 
Director, Community Services 
Acting Director, Planning and Economic 
Development 
Communications Coordinator  
Recording Secretary 
Legislative Services Officer 

Stacey Wabick 
Ed Kaemingh 

        Roger Autio  
Michelle Honeyman 

Stacey Sevilla 

  Nicole Brooks 
Natalie Bartlett 

Sarah Sebo 

ABSENT Reeve         Tyler Olsen 
Deputy Reeve        Bill Smith        
Director, Planning & Ec. Dev     Martino Verhaeghe 

Councillor Burton was appointed Chair of the Regular Council meeting due to 
Reeve Olsen and Deputy Reeve Bill Smith being absent according to Section 
13.1(g) of Bylaw 21-875. 

7



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

#2 
AGENDA 

MOTION: 22.09.496 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council adopt the Agenda of the September 13, 2022, Regular Council 
Meeting as amended. 

• Addition of agenda item – Greenview Industrial Gateway Road Tender 
• Addition of agenda item - STARS Foundation letter of support  

 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 
#3 MINUTES 

MOTION: 22.09.497 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 
That Council adopt the minutes of August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting 
minutes as amended. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
                                                                                       

3.2 BUSINESS 
ARISING 
FROM THE MINUTES  
 

3.2 BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 
Councillor Berry had a question about limiting wood burnable products, have 
we had to turn people away? Roger Autio, Director of Infrastructure & 
Engineering replied have had not turned anyone away and are trying not to 
turn people away. 
 
 

#4 PUBLIC HEARING 4.0 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

#6  
BYLAWS 

6.0 BYLAWS 

 6.1 Bylaw 22-915 Policy Review Committee Amendment 
Bylaw No. 22-915 MOTION: 22.09.498 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF  

That Council give third reading to Bylaw 22-915 Policy Review Committee 
Amendment as presented. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

8



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 
 

 6.2 Bylaw 22-916 Subdivision and Development Appeal Board 
BYLAW 22-916 MOTION: 22.09.499 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 

That Council give first reading to Bylaw 22-916 Subdivision and Development 
Appeal Board as amended. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 MOTION: 22.09.500 Moved by: COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF 
That Council give second reading to Bylaw 22-916 Subdivision and 
Development Appeal Board as presented. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

BYLAW 22-918 6.3 Bylaw 22-918 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Redesignate a 4.93-acre 
area within SW 9-72-1-W6 from Agricultural One (A-1) to Industrial General 
(M-2) 

 MOTION: 22.09.501 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT 
That Council give first reading to Bylaw 22-918, being a Land Use Bylaw 
Amendment to redesignate a 4.93-acre area within SW 9-72-1-W6 from 
Agricultural One (A-1) to Industrial General (M-2) to accommodate 
subdivision of an industrial lot. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow. 
Against: Councillor Dale Smith  
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 
 

  

9



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

6.4 Bylaw 22-909 Volunteer Firefighter Green Light Program  
BYLAW 22-909 MOTION: 22.09.502 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY 

That Council give first reading to Bylaw No. 22-909 Volunteer Firefighter Green 
Light Program.  
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 MOTION: 22.09.503 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 
That Council give second reading to Bylaw No. 22-909 Volunteer Firefighter 
Green Light Program as amended. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 7.1 Awarding of 2022-24 Software Components 
AWARDING 2022-22 
SOFTWARE 
COMPONENTS  

MOTION: 22.09.504 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council award the 2022-24 Software Project Component 1, Chart of 
Accounts to PSD Citywide Inc., in the amount of $88,600.00 plus GST, with 
funds to come from project CS22001 as approved within the 2022 budget. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

MOTION: 22.09.505 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 
That Council award the 2022-24 Software Project Component 2, Asset 
Management Software to PSD Citywide Inc., up to the amount of 
$196,400.00 plus GST, with funds to come from project CS22001 as approved 
within the 2022 budget. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 MOTION: 22.09.506 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 
That Council award the 2022-24 Software Project Component 3, Financial 
Software to TownSuite Municipal Software Inc. up to the amount of 
$470,650.00 plus GST, with funds to come from project CS22001 as approved 
within the 2022 budget. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 
 

 7.2 Aseniwuche Winewak Nation Round Dance Sponsorship 
AWN ROUND DANCE 
SPONSORSHIP 

MOTION: 22.09.507 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 
That Council take no action on the sponsorship request in the amount of 
$2,500.00 from the Aseniwuche Winewak Nation (AWN) for a Round Dance on 
September 17, 2022, in Grande Cache. 
 
For: Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow, Councillor Scott, Councillor Rosson, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme 
Against: Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Berry, Councillor Ratzlaff 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                       DEFEATED 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

MOTION: 22.09.508 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 
That Council approve the sponsorship request in the amount of $2,500.00 
from the Aseniwuche Winewak Nation (AWN) for a Round Dance on 
September 17, 2022, in Grande Cache with funds to come from Community 
misc grants to organizations budget. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
Against: Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Berry  
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 Councillor Burton recessed meeting at 10:07 a.m. 
Councillor Burton reconvened meeting at 10:21 a.m. 
 

 7.3 Town of Fox Creek Dog Park Land Use Approval 
TOWN OF FOX CREEK 
DOG PARK  

MOTION: 22.09.509 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF 
That Council authorize Administration to enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Town of Fox Creek for the purpose of development of 
a 1 acre off-leash dog park to be located on northeast corner of the Fox Creek 
Greenview Multiplex land, with no obligation to Greenview to fund the 
construction or ongoing operation and maintenance of the off-leash dog park. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 
 

 7.4 SARDA Municipal Capital Assistance Request 
SARDA MUNICIPAL 
CAPTIAL ASSISTANCE 
REQUEST  
 
 

MOTION: 22.09.510 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council accept the SARDA Municipal Capital Assistance report as 
information, as presented. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 
 

  
 

12



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

MOTION: 22.09.511 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council direct Administration to include a loan with a specified amount 
of $250,000 to SARDA with a repayment schedule over 10 years in the 2023 
budget preparation to assist with capital costs of the construction of the new 
facility to house the research organization, funds will be budgeted for in the 
2023 Agricultural Services Budget. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 

 7.5 Town of Grande Cache Policy repeal 
TOWN OF GC POLICY 
REPEAL  

MOTION: 22.09.512 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 
 That Council repeal the following obsolete Town of Grande Cache policies:  

• Resolution No. 156/16 Acceptable Use of Communication/Technology 
Resources for Council 

• Resolution No. 553/17 Council Electronic and Mobile Devices, Internet 
Access and Email Use 

• Resolution No. 304/16 Guidelines for the Protection of Mobile 
Devices and Mobile Data Storage Devices (Procedure)  

• Resolution No. 157/16 Guidelines for Acceptable Use of 
Communication Technology Resources (Procedure) 

• Resolution No. 304/16 Information Access and Security – Physical, 
Electronic and Remote 

• Resolution No. 304/16 Information and Records Management 
• Resolution No. 304/16 Internet and Email Use 
• Resolution No. 025/13 Municipal Emergency Management Policy  
• Resolution No. 028/13 Municipal Notification of Emergencies Policy  
• Resolution No. 304/16 Privacy Breach 
• Resolution No. 304/16 Protection of Information and Privacy  
• Resolution No. 304/16 Protection of Mobile Devices and Mobile Data 

Storage Devices  
• Resolution No. 155/16 Records and Information Management and 

Security for Council 
• Resolution No. 032/13 Training and Exercises Policy  
• Resolution No. 399/18 Use of Surveillance Cameras  

 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 

13



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 
 7.6 Grande Cache Firearms Restriction Report  
GC FIREARMS 
RESTRICTION REPORT  

MOTION: 22.09.513 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 
That Council accept the Grande Cache Firearms Restriction Report for 
information as presented. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 7.7 Ridgevalley Lagoon  
RIDGEVALLEY 
LAGOON 

MOTION: 22.09.514 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council accept the report for the purpose of providing direction 
regarding land securement for the Ridgevalley Lagoon for information, as 
presented. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 MOTION: 22.09.515 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY 
That Council direct Administration to proceed with a combination of Option 3 
(A) & 3 (B) for the purpose of providing a detailed plan for land securement, 
Ridgevalley Lagoon expansion and therefore potential accommodation of 
future growth of the Hamlet of Ridgevalley and area. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

7.8 2022 Surplus Disposal 
2022 SURPLUS 
DISPOSAL  

MOTION: 22.09.516 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY 
That Council authorizes Administration to list and sell the items on the 2022 
Surplus Disposal Table at the October 5-7th, 2022 Ritchie Bros. Auctioneers 
sale. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 7.9 ATCO FRANCHISE FEE – HAMLET OF GRANDE CACHE 
ATCO FRANCHISE FEE  MOTION: 22.09.517 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 

That Council approves to have the franchise fee for the for the Hamlet of Grande 
Cache ATCO Electric Ltd. remain at 0% for 2023. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 
 

 MOTION: 22.09.518 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 
That Council approves the extension for the Electric Distribution System 
Franchise Agreement with ATCO Electric Ltd. For another 5 years, as per the 
option within the agreement, included in Grande Cache Bylaw 749. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 Councillor Burton recessed the meeting at 12:01 p.m. 
Councillor Burton reconvened the meeting at 12:45 p.m. 
 

  
 
 
 
 

15



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

7.10 Notice of Motion – Grande Cache Community Bus potential 
replacement 

GC COMMUNITY BUS 
REPLACEMENT  

MOTION: 22.09.519 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 
That Council direct Administration to provide a report regarding the Grande 
Cache Community Bus for the purpose of understanding when it will be 
replaced, and the associated funds dedicated to its replacement. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 7.11 Notice of Motion Bring Policy 4010 Road Access Approaches to PRC 
POLICY 4010 TO PRC MOTION: 22.09.520 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY 

That Council direct Administration to bring Policy 4010 Road Access 
Approaches to Policy Review Committee for review as soon as practically 
possible. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow. 
Against: Councillor Ratzlaff 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 7.12 Notice of Motion Water Well for Sunset House Waterpoint 
WATER WELL SUNSET 
HOUSE WATERPOINT 

MOTION: 22.09.521 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY 
That Council direct Administration to drill a water well for the Sunset House 
Waterpoint to a maximum depth of 700 feet. 
                                                                                                                      DEFFERED  
 

 MOTION: 22.09.522 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY 
Sunset House Waterpoint water well to be deferred until Committee of the 
Whole meeting November 15, 2022. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

  
 

16



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

7.13 RMA Hospitality Suite – Fall Convention 
RMA HOSPITALITY 
SUITE 

MOTION: 22.09.523  Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 
That Council direct administration to proceed with planning a hospitality suite 
at the RMA Fall Convention in November 2022, with a budget of $15,000.00 
with funds to come from Councils Hospitality Budget and allow for an 
opportunity for the County of Grande Prairie, and the City of Grande Prairie, 
and Alberta Counsel to participate as equal funding and promotional partners 
to promote the respective region. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 7.14 Municipal Library Board Appointment 
MD LIBRARY BOARD MOTION: 22.09.524 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 

That Council rescind motions 21.01.012, 21.10.296, 20.12.648, which appoint 
members to the Municipal Library Board. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 MOTION: 22.09.525 Moved by: COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF 
That Council appoint the following individuals to the Municipal District of 
Greenview No. 16 Library Board for the specified terms: 
  
Josefina B Stoness – terms expiry date October 24, 2023 
Michelle Davis – term expiry date October 29, 2024 
Sharon Bambrick - term expiry date October 29, 2024 
Judy Smith - term expiry date October 29, 2024 
Roxanne Perron - term expiry date October 29, 2024 
Beverly Plamondon-Street – term expiry date October 29, 2024 
Joshua McMillan – term expiry date October 29, 2024 
Jessica Lavallee – terms expiry date October 29, 2024 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 

17



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 
 7.15 Greenview Industrial Gateway Road Tender 
GIG ROAD TENDER MOTION: 22.09.526 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT 

That Council award the Greenview Industrial Gateway Road Tender in the 
amount of $4,677,089.95 plus GST to Prairie North Construction, Acheson, 
Alberta with funds to come from the Greenview Industrial Gateway 2022 and 
2023 Capital Budget. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 7.16 STARS Foundation – Letter of Support  
STARS LETTER OF 
SUPPORT  

MOTION: 22.09.527  Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 
That Council direct Administration to provide a letter of support to STARS 
Foundation regarding the Registered Emergency Site Questionnaire (RESQ). 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

  
7.17 Managers Reports  

MANAGERS REPORTS  MOTION: 22.09.528 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council accept the Managers Reports for information as presented. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 Councillor Burton recessed meeting at 3:10 p.m. 
Councillor Burton reconvened meeting at 3:20 p.m.  
 

 Councillor Dale Smith exited meeting at 3:20 p.m. 
 

  
 
 

18



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

8.0 NOTICE OF MOTION 
NOTICE OF MOTION Councillor Berry makes a Notice of Motion that Council direct Administration 

to provide a report on the efficacy of Greenview bounty programs and 
potential options to cancel and or replace them.  
 

 9.0 CLOSED SESSION  
CLOSED SESSION MOTION: 22.09.529 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 

That the meeting go to Closed Session, at 3:21 p.m. pursuant to Section 197 
of the Municipal Government Act, 2000, Chapter M-26 and amendments 
thereto, and Division 2 of Part 1 of the Freedom of Information and 
Protection Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, Chapter F-25 and 
amendments thereto, to discuss Privileged Information with regards to the 
Closed Session. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 9.1 DISCLOSURE HARMFUL TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
 

 OPEN SESSION  
OPEN SESSION  MOTION: 22.09.530 Moved by: COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF 

That, in compliance with Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act, 
this meeting come into Open Session at 3:44 p.m. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith  
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 MOTION: 22.09.531 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 
That Council direct Administration to provide Council Draft agreements for 
the Community Development Initiative between MD of Greenview and the 
Town of Fox Creek and the Town of Valleyview for the term 2023-2025. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith  
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

19



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

  
#10 MEMBER 
REPORTS AND 
EXPENSE CLAIMS 

10.0 MEMBERS BUSINESS 
 
 

WARD 1 COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME updated Council on recent activities, 
which include; 

- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting  
- Clay Shoot fundraiser 
- Meeting with Maxim Power 

 
WARD 2 COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF updated Council on recent activities, which 

include;  
- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting 
- Fox Creek Community Education Committee 
- Northern Lakes College campus Grand Opening 
- Blossoming Garden of Hope tour 
- Fox Creek Ec. Development & Tourism board meeting  
- Alberta CARE Conference 

 
WARD 3 COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON updated Council on recent activities, which 

include; 
- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting 
- Blossoming Garden of Hope tour 
- Clay Shoot Fundraiser  

 
  
WARD 4 COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY updated Council on recent activities, which 

include; 
- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting  
- ASB meeting 
- Detecting Feral Swine DNA 
- Valleyview Crime Watch 
- Fox Creek joint Ec. Dev meeting 
- Seed Cleaning Plant meeting 
- Clay Shoot fundraiser 
- Golden Triangle Meeting 

 
WARD 5 COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH updated Council on recent activities, which 

include; 
- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting 
- Clay Shoot Fundraiser 
- PREDA meeting 

 

20



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 
 
WARD 6 
 

COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON updated Council on recent activities, which 
include; 

- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting 
- Lakeview Senior Complex 5th Anniversary 
- Grande Spirit Foundation Board Meeting 
- Grande Prairie Regional Hospital Grand Opening 
- Phillip J. Currie Museum Dino event 
- DeBolt Senior’s Project Site Review 
- Blossoming Garden of Hope tour 
- Grande Spirit Foundation Event 

 
WARD 7 COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT updated Council on recent activities, which 

include; 
- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting  
- Blossoming Garden of Hope tour 
- Clay Shoot fundraiser 

 
WARD 8 COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH updated Council on recent activities, which 

 include; 
- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting  

 
 
 
WARD 8 

 
COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF updated Council on recent activities, which 
include; 

- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting 
- Blossoming Garden of Hope tour 
- Economic Development of Alberta - zoom meeting 
- Clay Shoot fundraiser 
- MD of Greenview Library Board meeting  

 
WARD 9 
 
 
 

COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW updated Council on recent activities, which 
include; 

- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting 
- Grande Prairie Regional Tourism Association regular board meeting 
- Meeting with Maxim  Power 
- FCSSAA Policy Committee meeting 
- Clay Shoot Fundraiser 
- Grande Cache Medical not for profit committee meeting  

 
 MOTION: 22.09.532 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 

That Council fund 1 member from Grande Cache medical community to 
attend the 2022 RHPAP conference in Drayton Valley to an upset limit of 
$1600.00 for the purpose of covering meals, accommodation, mileage and 
registration with funds to come from the Community Services Grants budget. 

21



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 

 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith  
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

WARD 9 COUNCILLOR TYLER OLSEN updated Council on recent activities, which 
include; 

- August 23, 2022, Regular Council Meeting 
- Agricultural Service Board meeting 
- Meeting with Maxim Power 
- Meeting with Mayor of Whitecourt and CAO 
- Clay Shoot Fundraiser 
- Friendship Garden unveiling 
- Meeting with Horselake Chief and Administration 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MEMBERS BUSINESS 

MOTION: 22.09.533 Moved by: COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF  
That Council accept the Members Business Reports for information as 
presented. 
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith  
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 

 11.0 ADJOURNMENT 
ADJOURNMENT MOTION: 22.09.534 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON  

That Council adjourn this Regular Council Meeting at 4.18 p.m.  
 
For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow. 
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith  
                                                                                                                          CARRIED 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

22



Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  September 13,2022 
MD of Greenview 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________                     ___________________________________ 
 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER                                    CHAIR 

 

23



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Bylaw 22-919 Off-Site Levy Repeal Bylaw 
SUBMISSION TO: REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER:  
DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
DIR: MAV    PRESENTER: MAV 

STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance and Economy LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial - Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.M-26 s.63 and s648. 

Council Bylaw/Policy Bylaw 94-12, Town of Grande Cache Bylaw 669. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Council give first reading to Bylaw 22-919 “Off-Site Levy Repeal Bylaw” as presented 

MOTION: That Council direct administration to schedules a public hearing for Bylaw 22-919 for November 
22, 2022. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Administration has reviewed the outstanding Town of Grande Cache Bylaw 669 “Off-Site Levy By-Law” and 
Bylaw 94-12 “Off-Site Levy” and is recommending that these outdated Bylaws be repealed based on the 
following factors: 

• Bylaw 94-12 is a residual of being from when Greenview was an Improvement District and has not been
applied since becoming a Municipal District.

• The Town of Grande Cache Bylaw 669 “Off-Site Levy By-Law” does not meet current legislative
requirements for annual review. Annual reports have not occurred and were not regularly occurring
before the dissolution of the Town of Grande Cache.

• The studies that The Town of Grande Cache Bylaw 669 “Off-Site Levy By-Law” are based upon, are unable
to be found and costing can not be confirmed.

To re-instate appropriate off-site levies modernized and detailed infrastructure studies would be required. 
These forms of studies can be quite costly and may be of limited benefit to Greenview financially. 

Administration is not recommending these off-site levy fees be reinstated. 

24



 
 

 

 
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 1.  The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is Greenview’s practices become 
  consistent with legislative requirements. 
 2. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is by removing these fees it does 

 not penalize the residents of Grande Cache when developing, by applying fees required 
 under bylaws that have not been consistently applied. 

 3. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is Greenview’s investment in 
 utilities in Grande Cache will not be bound by the outdated policies of the previous Town of 
 Grande Cache. 

 4. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is removing the risk of a costly 
  appeal to the necessary application of this bylaw in its current form. 
 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 1.  The disadvantage to the recommended motion is that Greenview can no longer collect off-site 
  levy fees as a revenue source. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Council directs Administration to budget for the preparation of an infrastructure study in the 
Hamlet of Grande Cache, to allow for the preparation of a modernized off-site development bylaw, to act as 
a funding source for the growth of development of utility infrastructure within this community. However, 
Administration does not recommend this due to the cost and limited benefit to Greenview. 
 
Alternative #2: Council directs Administration to budget for the preparation of an infrastructure study for all 
Hamlets within Greenview, to allow for the preparation of several modernized off-site development bylaws, 
to act as a funding source for the growth of development of utility infrastructure within these communities. 
However, Administration does not recommend this due to the cost and limited benefit to Greenview. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Repealing this bylaw has no direct cost to Greenview and allows us to still consider an updated off-site 
development bylaw in communities where it is deemed appropriate in the future.  Furthermore, the risk of 
trying to defend an appeal to the application of the current bylaw no longer exists. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 

25



 
 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will schedule a public hearing as required in the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, s.606.  
Administration will apply recommendations from Council for second and third readings.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Bylaw 22-919 
• Bylaw 94-12 
• Town of Grande Cache Bylaw 669 
• Municipal Government Act “off-site levy” 648, 648.4 and 649 

 

26



  

Bylaw 22- 919                                                                                                                                                                                  
1                                                                                                                                                                      

BYLAW No. 22-919 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

 

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of Alberta, to repeal 
inoperative, obsolete, expired, spent and ineffective bylaws. 

 
Whereas, under the provisions of the Municipal Government Act, Chapter M-25, R.S.A 2000, 
Council has been granted the authority to pass bylaws for municipal purposes; and 
 
Whereas, Section 63 of the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.M-26, as amended, 
empowers a council of a municipality to pass a bylaw which omits or provides for the repeal of a 
bylaw or provision of a bylaw that is inoperative, obsolete, expired, spent or otherwise ineffective; 
and 
 
Whereas, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 deems it desirable to repeal 
inoperative, obsolete, expired, spent, and ineffective bylaws;  
 
Therefore, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled in the 
province of Alberta, hereby enacts the following: 
 

1. TITLE 
1.1. This Bylaw shall be cited as the “Off-site Levy Repeal Bylaw”. 

 
2. REPEAL  

2.1. Bylaw 94-012 “Off-site Levy Fee” is hereby repealed.  
 

2.2. Town of Grande Cache Bylaw 669 “Off-site Levy” is hereby repealed.  
 

3. COMING INTO FORCE 
3.1. This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing and signing. 

 
Read a first time this _____ day of _______, 2022. 
 
Read a second time this _____ day of _______, 2022. 
 
Read a third time this  _____ day of _______, 2022. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       REEVE 
 
       ________________________________ 
       CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

27



•
Al;~

<~ :

",>If~ ':',) ~a't~
~ .,'"., -' ~ ,w~ .'. ~

MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS

Office of

the Minister

•
M.O. NO.

In the matter of

THE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS ACT
R.S.A. 1970, Section 18

and

THE PLANNING ACT,
R.S.A. 19,77

and
/

IMPROVE~lENT DISTRICT NO. 16
/

r;abf
J3 \I.LA<.>,) qr.{ -I ;;l.

I~EREAS subdivision of land within the Improvement District No. 16 imposes
an expense to the remainder of the Improvement District; and

I\~REAS the Minister of Municipal Affairs, as Council for
Improvement District No. 16 proposes to impose an off-site levy on previously
undeveloped lands to provide for expansion of water supply, treatment and
storage facilities, sewage treatment ap0 disposal facilities, or any or all of
them.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, ~ffiRVIN E. MOORE, MINISTER OF ~illNICIPAL AFFAIRS, by
virtue of the authority vested in me, pursuant to the aforementioned statutes,
DO HEREBY ORDER Tt~T;

1) for all subdivisions with water systems to be installed, there

shall be imposed an off-site levy of ... $300.00

2) for all subdivisions with water systems and sewage systems, there

shall be imposed an off-site levy of . . • . . . $500.00

3) for all subdivisions with nO disposal facilities that are located
adjacent to the proposed subdivision and/or sewage disposal facilities
not in place,

there shall be imposed an off-site levy of $200.00

4) for all subdivisions with disposal facilities located adjacent to the
proposed subdivision,

there shall be imposed an o,ff-site levy of

5) all above charges are for each developable lot

$100.00

6) an agreement shall be entered into between the Minister of Municipal
Affairs, as Council for Improvement District No. 16 and the developer
for the provision of municipal services to the land under development.

This Order shall come into effect at the date of signing.

!~"ST"'1.Lf.~~~:~m ,;,';-u_

DATED at FDMONTON, Alberta

This 'i_'__day of
/--1
( 1-,,/
'7/ f''-' ;;
c/

) A.D. LY/9.

28



 

  
 

 

 

29



I
THE TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

BY.LAW NO. 669

BEING A BY.LAW OF THE TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE !N THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA,
FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FOR THE IMPOSITION OF A LEVY, TO BE KNOWN
AS AN "OFF-SITE LEVY", IN REPSECT OF LAND THAT IS TO BE SUBDIVIDED,
DEVELOPED OR IS TO UNDERGO A CHANGE IN USE OR INTENSITY OF USE

WHEREAS the Atberta Municipat Government Act, RSA 2OOO, Chapter M-26, as amended,
provides as follows:

Section 648(1) For the purposes referred to in subsection (2), a council may by by-law

(a) provide for the imposition and payment of a !evy, to be known as
an 'Off-Site levy', in respect of land that is to be developed or
subdivided, and

(b) authorize an agreement to be entered into in respect of the
payment of the levy.

AND WHEREAS new residential, commercial and industrial sites within the Town of
Grande Cache have required and will continue to require new construction or expansion of
certain water and sanitary sewer facilities or land in connection with such facilities;

AND WHEREAS Counci! for the Town of Grande Cache deems it desirable that subdivisions,
developments and redevelopments should bear a fair and reasonable portion of the cost of
constructing or expanding such facilities;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Grande Cache, duly assembled, hereby enacts
as follows:

1. TITLE

This By-Law shall be known and referred to as the "Off-Site Levy By-LaW'.

2. DEFINITIONS:

ln this By-Law, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

a) "Act" means the Alberta Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26, and all
regulations enacted thereunder, all as amended from time to time;

b) 'CAO' means the Chief Administrative Officer of the Town of Grande Cache as defined
in the Act;

c) "Development" means "development" as defined in the Act;

d) "Development Area" means those areas of lands within the Town boundaries, as
adjusted from time to time, as set out in Section 3 and Map 1 in Appendix A of the
Town of Grande Cache Off-Site Levy Rate Study;

e) "Off-Site Levies" means the Off-Site levies imposed pursuant to this By-Law underthe
authority of the Act;

0 "Study" means the Town of Grande Cache Off-Site Levy Rate Study, dated
August 2008, prepared by Corvus Business Advisors, attached hereto as Schedule "A";

g) "Subdivision" means "subdivision" as defined in the Act;

h) "Town" means the Town of Grande Cache.

)

30



Off-Site Levy By-Law No. 669 Town of Grande Cache Page2

3. PURPOSE AND INTENT

This By-Law is intended to:

a) impose and provide forthe payment of levies, to be known as Off-Site Levies in respect
of land within the Town that is to be subdivided, developed, redeveloped, or undergo a
change in use or intensity of use;

b) authorize agreements to be entered into in respect of payment of Off-Site Levies to
ensure that the developer of each parcel of land that is to be subdivided, developed,
redeveloped, or undergo a change in use or intensity of use, pays a proportionate share
of the costs to provide new or expanded infrastructure required for the
Development Area within which such land is located.

4. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

Council hereby delegates to the CAO the duty and authority to enforce and administer this
By-Law and to execute on behalf of the municipality, written agreements with owners of land
that is to be subdivided, developed, redeveloped, or undergo a change in use or intensity of
use, providing for the payment of Off-Site Levies imposed hereunder.

5. IMPOSITION OF OFF.SITE LEVIES

The Off-Site Levies, calculated using the rates set forth in Table 13 of the Study, are hereby
imposed, on the terms specified in this By-Law, in respect of land to be subdivided, developed,
redeveloped, or undergo a change in use or intensity of use, and the owners of such land shall,
as a condition of subdivision or development approval, enter into an agreement to pay to the
Town the Off-Site Levies so imposed.

6. DIVISION INTO AREAS

For the purposes of imposing the Off-Site Levies in accordance with the Act, the Town is
divided into Development Areas as set forth in Map 1 of Appendix A of the Study.

7. OBJECT OF THE LEVIES

The object of the Off-Site Levies is to reimburse the Town for past, present and future capital
costs associated with the following:

a) neworexpanded facilities forthe storage, transmission, treatmentorsupplying of water,
including without limitation, for fire suppression;

b) new or expanded facilities for the treatment, movement or disposal of sanitary sewage.

8. DETERMINATION OF OFF.SITE LEVIES

The Off-Site Levies of this By-Law were determined in accordance with the calculations set
forth in the Study. The applicable projects, their associated costs, benefiting
Development Areas are considered in the Study.

9. PAYMENT

Where the owner of land is subject to an Otf-Site Levy under this By-Law fails, neglects or
refuses to pay the Off-Site Levy, or to provide security for its payment, the Town:

a) may commence proceedings in court for recovery of the Off-Site Levy as a debt due to
the Municipality; or

,/

31



\

Off-Site Levy By-Law No. 669 Town of Grande Cache Page 3

b) may refuse to consent to the registration of a subdivision plan or issue a
Development Permit until the owner has paid the Off-Site Levy in full, or provided
security satisfactory to the CAO for its payment.

10. OFF.SITE LEVY FUNDS

The Town shallestablish and maintain a separate Off-Site Levyfund in respect of each facility
in respect of which the Off-Site Levies are collected. Each such fund shal! be kept separate
from the General Account or any other account of the Town.

11. ANNUAL REVIEW

Each calendar year the CAO shall provide a report to Council setting forth the Off-Site Levies
imposed pursuant to this By-Law, collections thereof, and expenditures made in the previous
year, including uncollected Off-Site Levies, the amount in each Off-Site Levyfund established
pursuant to Section 10, the amount of any grants or other contributions, and the estimated
costs or the actual costs incurred in respect of each such facility; and Council may amend this
By-Law to update any one or more of the Off-Site Levy rates.

12. OTHER LEVIES

Nothing in this By-Law precludes the Town from imposing further or different Off-Site levies,
duly enacted by By-Law, on any land in respect of which the Town has not collected the
Off-Site Levies imposed hereunder.

13. MISCELLANEOUS

Schedule "A" is hereby incorporated into and forms and integral part of this By-Law.

Off-Site Levy By-Law No. 653 is hereby rescinded.

This By-Law shalltake effect on the date it is passed.

Read a first time this 1Oth day of September, 200E AD

AND ADVERTISED the 16th day of September, 2008 AND the 23'd day of September,2008
in the Grande Cache Mountaineer.

PUBLTC HEARING held the 24th day of September,2008.

Read a second time this 24th day of September, 2008 AD
Read a third and final time this 24rh day of September, 2008 AD

DONE AND PASSED as a By-Law of the Town nde Cache this 24th day ot
September,2008.

Mayor Chief Administrative

^/

32



Town of Grande Cache

Off-site Levy Rate Study

August 2008

CORVIJS*

\

33



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

Table of Contents

1. INTRODUCTION

2. REVTEW METHODOLOGY......... .................2

3. OFF-SITE LEVY DEVELOPMENT LANDS ....................4

4. WATER OFF-S|TE |NFRASTRUCTURE....... ................. s

5. WATER INFRASTRUGTURE GRANTS & THIRD PARW CONTRIBUTIONS......................6

6. WATER OFF.SITE INFRASTRUCTURE BENEFITING PARTIES .......................6

7. DEVELOPMENTANDWATERSTAGING !MPACTS... ....................7

8. WATEROFFSrTELEVYRATES....................

9. SANITARYOFF.SITEINFRASTRUCTURE

10. SANITARY OFF.SITE INFRASTRUCTURE BENEFITING PARTIES 10

11. DEVELOPMENT AND SANITARY STAGING IMPACTS ..........1I

12. SANTTARY OFFSTTE LEVY RATES....... ..................12

13. SUMMARY OF OFFSITE LEVY RATES l3

14. SUMMARY OF RATE DEVELOPMENT ASSUMPTIONS .........14

APPENDIX A

9

9

l5

CORVUS*

34



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rafe Study

1. Introduction

On March 13, 2008, the Town of Grande Cache retained Corvus Business Advisors for
the provision of services related to the development of Off-site Levy Rates. The Town of
Grande Cache had not previously established offsite levy rates but rather acted as the
primary developer of the community. ln this development capacity the Town undertook
fronting ending of off-site levy infrastructure and other development costs and passed on

costs in the price of sold serviced lots. The Town has received interests from various

developers who wish to develop lands within the Town and the Town now needs a
mechanism of charging and collecting developer contributions toward the cost of off-site

levy infrastructure that will serve development lands.

The Town wishes to ensure that the off-site levy rates that are developed for the

community are fair and reasonable and that they comply with legislative and regulatory
requirements. The establishment of Off-site Levy Rates also provides the Town with an

opportunity to understand the cost of infrastructure required to support development, the
grants and other contributions that may be anticipated in defraying infrastructure costs

and infrastructure cost assignment to benefiting parties.

This report outlines the methodology used in establishing water and sanitary off-site levy

rates for the Town of Grande Cache.

2. Review Methodology

To support the establishment of new Off-site Levy Rates the Town of Grande Cache had

undertaken two Master Plan studies to determine water and sanitary infrastructure

requirements and costs. The town also has considered future development plans and

land uses.

Support provided by the Corvus Business Advisors project team included:

. Establishing processes that would be used in the overall development, review,

approval and administrative management of offsite levies for the Town.

. feviewing and updating off-site infrastructure costs as required. ISL Engineering
I
I

35



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rafe Study

and Land Services Ltd. supported Corvus Business Advisors with this undertaking.

. Determining the potential development areas of the Town, potential land uses within

these development areas as well as the off-site infrastructure benefit derived by each

area. ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd also supported these tasks.

. Development of water and sanitary sewer off-site levy rates for the Town's

development area.

. Development of processes to be used in collecting, administering and updating Town

offsite levies in the future.

. Gathering of benchmark information from sunounding communities regarding offsite

levy rates and levy calculation parameters.

. Presentation of off-site levy rate and background information to invited developers.

The Off-site Levy Rate review was undertaken in a collaborative fashion with the Town

Administration including the Town's CAO and Planning and Development Services.

The following illustration outlines the macro level work plan undertaken for the study.

CORVUS.

36



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

3. Off-site Levy Development Lands

The Town of Grande Cache's off-site levy development area is defined by the corporate

boundaries of the community and by a review of Town lands that are suitable for
development. Map 1 in Appendix A outlines the based development area employed in

off-site levy rate calculations.

The net development area used in development of off-site levy rates is outlined in the

Table 1, Off-site Levy Net Development Area, below. ln developing the net development

area calculations we have considered only those remaining lands within the Town that
are suitable to development (areas with severe side slopes and other environmental

considerations have been excluded). We have further made allowances in net

development area calculations for environmental reserves, arterial road right of way and

municipal reserves.

274.42

Sub total 274.42
Municipal Reserves 27.44

totatT4?i-56-

Net development area definitions will be applied in determining off-site levy obligations of
Developers on application for subdivision or development within the Town of Grande

Cache. Net development area is defined as follows:

. Gross Area - The area of lands to be developed in hectares.

. Less: Any development areas that have previously paid an off-site levy.

. Less: Any environmental reserves contained within the development area
lncluding environmental reserves, environmental easements and areas deemed
undevelopable due to environmentalfactors such as severe sideslopes.

. Less: A 10o/o allowance for Municipal Reserves.

r Less: The measurement of arteria! road right of way / highway right of way that
bisects the development lands.

Equals: Net Developable Area, which is the area subject to off-site levies.

Table 1 - Off-site Levy Net Development Area

Gross Area
Environmental Reserve

37



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rafe Study

We have further classified net development areas according to anticipated land use.

Land use classifications may be considered at some future point in considering whether

there exist differential demand for / benefit from offsite infrastructure. Currently all land

uses are considered to benefit in equivalent fashion from off-site levy infrastructure.

Table 2, Net Development Area by Anticipated Land Use, below, outlines development
area by land use.

Table 2 -Net Development Area by Anticipated Land Use

Comm / lndustrial
Med Density Res.
Residential

128.36

118.62
total ---74636-

4. Water Off-site lnfrastructure

!n order to support Town growth two off-site infrastructure investments are required

including:

. New Fire Pump - This facility is an upgrade of the existing system and is
necessary to improve fire flows in Zone 1 (East of Highway 40), and in the
commercial and institutional areas near the Town Centre area.

. New Water Reservoir - the Town will require a second reservoir when the
population of the community reaches approximately 6,450 people. The new
reservoir will have a capacity of approximately 1,897 m3.

A summary of off-site levy water costs by facility type is provided in Table 3 Off-site Levy

Water Costs by Type, below.

$ 0.52
$ 6.27
$ 6.79

Table 3 - Offsite Levy Water Costs by Type

Fire Pumps
Reservoir

The costs associated with each off-site water element are expressed in 2007 dollars.

Water cost estimates have been developed by ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd.

In discussion with various Engineering Consulting firms and other municipalities we have

determined that there has not been any appreciable change in prices between 2007 and

38



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

2008. We are therefore of the opinion that 2007 cost estimates can be applied in 2008.

5. Water lnfrastructure Grants & Third Party
Contributions

Offsite levy rate calculations do not reflect any special grants or other third party

contributions. Should these amounts be rec,eived they would reduce the off-site

infrastructure cost burden on benefiting parties. We believe that the Town may be able

to attract Alberta Water and Wastewater Partnerchip funding for the new water reservoir

in the future. However no provision has been included for this potential at this time. We

have advised the Town to consider a future reduction of off-site levy costs at such time

as a water grant application is submitted and approved by Alberta Transportation or

other granting agency.

6. Water Off-site lnfrastructure Benefiting Parties

The off-site water infrastructure previously outlined will benefit various parties to varying

degrees. During our review we have identified two benefiting parties for this

infrastructure including :

. The Town of Grande Cache - for a portion of Fire Pump costs. Fire Pump

infrastructure, in part, upgrades fire flow protection to existing residents.

. Town of Grande Cache Developers - Both the Fire Pump and new Water Reservoir

support groMh. Developer share of costs relate to that share of infrastructure costs

that support groMh.

Table 4 Water lnfrastructure Benefiting Parties, below outlines the allocation of off-site

levy road infrastructure costs to benefiting parties. Percentage allocations have been

determined in consultation with lSL Engineering and Land Services Ltd.

39



Table 4 -Water lnfrastructure Benefiting Parties

Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

The percentage split of benefit pertaining to the New Fire Pump is based upon
proportionate share of area (existing and yet to be developed) benefiting from the Pump.

The resulting allocation of water infrastructure costs is outlined in Table 5 Allocation of
Water Costs to Benefiting Parties

Table 5 Allocation of Water Costs to Benefiting Parties

Developers

7. Development and Water Staging lmpacts

Water off-site infrastructure will be constructed in staged fashion over a twenty-five year

development period. We have reviewed the availability of off-site levy funds to meet

construction requirements and found at times that funding will not be sufficient to fund

water off-site infrastructure construction expenditures. While off-site levy rates have

been set to ultimately fully recover infrastructure construction costs and carrying costs of
front ending parties the Town should recognize that it will likely be required to front end

some infrastructure construction in 2009 and later in 2019 when the new water reservoir

is required.

ln order to compensate front ending parties for their likely cost of capital we have

established a 4.600/o interest charge when infrastructure costs exceed reserve funds

available and a 3.75o/o interest credit for interest earned on positive off-site levy reserve

balances. The graph and table below outlines water levy reserve balances over the

twenty-five year development period.

40



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

Graph 1 Anticipated Water Off-site Levy Reserve Balances

Water Reserve
$6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000

$-

$(2,000,000)

$(4,ooo,ooo)

$(6,000,000)

Year

/

^-F
w"'

9ttNE (o@o,
5oooo
{N$t6tGl

ii .j aixao,l -S!^.$f o

L{

Table 6 Water Off-site Levy Reserve Cash Flow, below, outlines anticipated receipts and

disbursements to the water off-site levy reserve.

Table 6 Water Off-site Levy Reserve Cash FIow

$ 9,20e,46s $ (219,770) $(4,ee7,37s)
209,2371 $(4,757,876)
218,862) $(4,e76,739)
181,312) $(4,122,869)
167,369) $(3,80s,826)
175,068) $(3,980,894)
157,611) $(3,583,e32)
164,861) $(3,748,793)
'r71,011) $(3,888,649)

(113,304) $(2,576,441)
(118,516) $(2,6s4,e57)

1,365 $ 37,760

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

$ 34.160 $
$ 263,847 $
$ 163,725 $
$ 11,570 $
$ 588,7,14 $
$ 153,780 $
$ 249,09e $
$-$
$ 334,446 $
$ 247,668 $
$ 631,808 $

$ (11,1e7) $ (254,616)
$ 3.t6 $ 9,577
$ 6,499 $ 179,800
$ 7,176 $ 198,s47
$ 29,523 $ 816,814
$ 36,397 $ 1,006,991

$ 47,103 $ 1,303,193
$ 48,870 $ 1,352,063
$ 63,2'14 $ 1,749,753
$ 74,903 $ 2,072,324
$ 101,405 $ 2,80s,537

2021
2022.
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032

$ 593,936
$ 448,736
$-
$ 1,03s,182
$ ,184,411

$-
$ 554,573
$
$ 31,155
$ 1,425,s12
$-
$ 2,731,353

$-$
$-$
$-$$-s
$-$
$-$
$-$
$-$
$-$
$-$
$-$

41



Table 7 Summary of Water Off-site Levies

1.1, 5.1, 6.1, 6.2, 7.1, 7.2, 8.2,
.2, 11.1, 12.1, 13.1, 14.1,

15.1, 16.1 , 17.1, & 18.1

.1, 3.1 , 3.3, 3.4, 4.1, 9.1 , 9.3,

Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

8. Water Offsite Levy Rates

Table 7 Summary of Water Offsite Levies, below outlines off-site levy rates associated

with construction of water offsite levy infrastructure for each development area.

Differences in rates reflect the differentia! benefit accruing to the development area.

9. Sanitary Off-site lnfrastructure

ln order to support future community growth, it has been determined that sanitary off-site
infrastructure is required. The estimated costs of this infrastructure based upon 2007

cost estimates and 2008 closed tender prices are provided in Table 8 Summary of
Sanitary Off-site lnfrastructure below.

Table 8 Summary of Sanitary Off-site lnfrastructure

Town Site 2 Trunk
Town Site 2 Diversion
West Bench Trunk

The costs associated with Town Site 2 Diversion and West Bench Trunk are expressed

in 2007 dollars. Water cost estimates have been developed by ISL Engineering and

Land Services Ltd. ln discussion with various Engineering Consulting firms and other
municipalities we have determined that there has not been any appreciable change in

prices between 2007 and 2008. We are therefore of the opinion that 2007 cost

1.63
0.26
2.80
4"69

42



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

estimates can be applied in 2008. Cost estimates for the Town Site 2 Trunk are based

upon 2008 tender prices.

10. Sanitary Off-site lnfrastructure Benefiting
Parties

The sanitary off-site infrastructure previously outlined will benefit various parties to
varying degrees. During our review we have identified two benefiting parties including:

. The Town of Grande Cache - for sanitary transmission through the Town Site 2
Trunk and related Diversion.

. Town of Grande Cache Developers - for sanitary transmission through the Town

Site 2 Trunk and related Diversion and for sanitary transmission through the West
Bench Trunk.

The Table 9 Allocation of Sanitary lnfrastructure to Benefiting Parties, below, outlines the

allocation of sanitary off-site levy infrastructure costs to benefiting parties.

Table 9 Allocation of Sanitary lnfrastructure to Benefiting Parties

Allocation of benefit between existing and future development is based upon flow
information for contributing areas.

Table 10 Allocation of Sanitary lnfrastructure Costs, below outlines the cost allocation

resulting from the percentage allocations outlined above.

Table 10 Allocation of Sanitary lnfrastructure Gosts

xisting Town 0.56
4.13

10

43



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

11. Development and Sanitary Staging Impacts

Sanitary off-site infrastructure will be constructed in staged fashion over the twenty-five
year development period. We have reviewed the availability of off-site levy funds to
meet these construction requirements and found that funding will not be sufficient to fund

sanitary construction infrastructure through most of the twenty-five year review period-
front ending of infrastructure by the Town of Grande Cache will be required.

ln order to compensate the Town for the capital outlay associated with front-ending off-

site infrastructure construction, we have created a 4.600/o interest allowance in off-site

levy rate calculations. Further, a 3.75o/o interest credit has provided to reduce off-site

levy rates for interest earned on positive reserve balances. The graph and table below

outline sanitary levy reserve balances over the twenty-five year development period.

Graph 2 Anticipated Sanitary Off-site Levy Reserve Balances

Sanitary Reserve
$1,000,000

$-

$(1,oo0,ooo)

$(2,000,000)

$(3,000,000)

$(4,000,000)

$(5,000,000)

if=;-+r; ; e e,J
)-ooo\t6tN6l ooorx9L<rl c{r{ N o

/
/('

*Reserve
Balance

Year

ll
44



Town of Grande Cache

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032

49,210
$ 63,792 $
$ 353,616 $
$ 247,374 $
$ 20,401 $
$ 166,199 $
$ 55,919 $
$ 80,696 $
$$
$ '172,954 $
$ 55,112 $
$ 285,099 $
s 843,728 $
$ 472,320 $
$ 348,813 $
$$
$ 979,904 $
$ 602,913 $
$-$
$ 690,238 $
$-$
$ 7,934 $
$ 526,135 $
$-$
$ 695,566 $

402,535
994,457

.

3,875,855

-

-

l

12. Sanitary Offsite Lely Rates

Table 12 Summary of Sanitary Offsite Levies, below outlines off-site levy rates
associated with construction of sanitary offsite levy infrastructure for each development
area. Differences in rates reflect the differential benefit accruing to development area
from off-site levy infrastructure being provided.

Off-site Levy Rate Study

1,845 $
$ (13,234)

$ (43,321)
$ (33,935)
$ (34,ss7)
$ (28,502)

$ (27,2401

$ (24,7821

$ (25,921)
$ (19,158)

$ (17,504)

$ (183,484)
$ (153,113)

$ (138,429)
$ (128,752)

$ (134,674)
$ (e5,7e4)

$ (72,466)

$ (75,800)
$ (47,536)

$ (49,722)
$ (51,644)
$ (29,818)

$ (31,190)
$ (628)

$ (300,922

$ (985,083
$ (771,644
$ (785,801

$ (648,104
$ (619,425
$ (563,511

$ (589,432
$ (435,636
$ (398,029)
$(4,172,269)
$(3,481,654)
$(3,147,763)
$(2,927,702)
$(3,062,376)
$(2,178,266)
$(1,647,820)
$(1,723,620)
$(1,080,917)
$(1,130,640)
$ (1,174,350)
$ (678,033)
$ (709,223)
$ (14,285)

Table 11 Anticipated Sanitary Off-site Levy Reserve Balances

t2
45



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

Table 12 Summary of Sanitary Off-site Levies

13. Summ ary of Offsite Levy Rates

The table below outlines off-site levy rates associated with construction of water and

sewer offsite levy infrastructure for each development area within the Town of Grande

Cache. Differences in rates reflect the differential benefit accruing to the development

area.

Table 13 Summary of Off-site Levies

1.1 $ 32.206.24 40.084.84 72.291.O8
2.1 4.651.44 14.059.11 18.710.55
3.1 4.651.44 8.201.64 12.853.08
3.2 s s-
3.3 $ 4.651.44 s 14.059.11 $ 18.710.55
3.4 $ 4.651.44 $ 8.201.64 $ 12.8s3.08
4.1 4.651.44 $ 8.201.64 $'t2.853.08
4.2 $ 36,8s7.69 8,201.64 45.059.32
5.1 s 32.206.24 8.201.64 40.407.88
6.1 32.206.24 40.084.84 72.291.O8
6.2 32.206.24 40.084.84 72.291.O8
7.1
7.2

32,206.24
32.206.24

40,084.84
40.084.84

$ 72,291.08
$ 72.291.08

8.1 s- s B

8.2 $ 32.206.24 8.201.64 40.407.88

9.1 s 4.651.44 8.201.64 $ 12.853.08
9.2 $ 32.206.24 8.201.64 $ 40.407.88
9.3 $ 4.651.44 8.201.64 $ 12.853.08

10.1 s 4.651.44 8.201.64 $ 12.853.08
11.1 $ 32.206.24 40.084.84 $ 72.291.08
12.1 s 32.206.24 $ 8.201.64 $ 40,407.88
13.1 s 3220624 s 8 201"64 40.407.44
14.'.| $ 32.206.24 8.201.64 40.407.88
1s.1 32.206_24 40.084.84 72.291.O8
16.1 32.206.24 8.201.64 40.407.88
17.1 32.206.24 s 8.201.64 s 40.407.88
18.1 $ 32.206.24 s 8.201.64 $ 40.407.88

2.1, & 3.3

3.1, 3.4, 4.1, 4.2, 5.1, 8.2,9.2,
9,3, 10.1 , 12.1, 13.1, 14.1,
16.1.17.1. & 18.1

CORVUS.

13

46



.4.

Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

14. Summary of Rate Development Assumptions

The following is a summary of off-site levy rate development assumptions.

. The net development area of lands within the Town of Grande Cache is 246.98 ha.

. The total 2007 cost of offsite water facilities is $6.79M

. Water off-site infrastructure will benefit existing and future development areas.

. Grants have not been included in water off-site levy calculations as application and

approvals are outstanding. Grant impacts will be considered in the future given the

approval of the water reservoir project by Alberta Transportation or other appropriate
grant funding agencies.

. The total 2007 cost and 2008 tender prices for offsite sanitary facilities is $4.69M

. Staging of off-site levy infrastructure may from time to time result in positive offsite

levy reserve balances. Positive reserve balances will earn interest at 3.75o/o.

lnterest earned on reserves will serve to reduce off-site levy rate calculations.

. Staging of off-site levy infrastructure may from time to time result in front ending

requirements. Front ending debts will earn interest al 4.600/o. lnterest expenses

associated with front ending debts will result in additional costs and with thereby

increase off-site levy rate calculations.

. Off-site levy rates will pay for off-site levy infrastructure and result in off-site levy

reserves balances approximating a zero dollar balance in 2032.

t4
47



Town of Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

Appendix A

15

48



rc*frf Grande Cache
Off-site Levy Rate Study

Map 1 - Town of Grande Cache Off-site Levy Development Area

TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE

Offrl1r4,tu€..

CORVUS-"
t6

49



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Bylaw 22-920 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Redesignate an ±11-ha (28-ac) area 
within NW 4-69-19-W5 from Agricultural One (A-1) to Agricultural Two (A-2) 

SUBMISSION TO: REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIR: SAS PRESENTER: NF 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Development LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.M-26 s.640 & 641. 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – Municipal Development Plan (MDP) Bylaw 15-742 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Council give first reading to Bylaw 22-920, being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment to 
redesignate an ±11-ha (28-ac) area within NW 4-69-19-W5 from Agricultural One (A-1) to Agricultural Two 
(A-2) to accommodate subdivision of an existing farmstead. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Administration has received an application to rezone an ±11-hectare (28-acre) portion of NW 4-69-19-W5 to 
allow the subdivision of the farmstead approximately 36 km southeast of the Town of Valleyview, 1.6 km 
south of Highway 665 and Highway 747 intersection, in the Sunset House/Sweathouse area, Ward 4. 

The farmstead separation will be the first subdivision from the quarter section. To include the riding arena 
and dugout, the subdivision area will exceed the maximum allowed within the current zoning district. The 
maximum parcel size for subdivisions within the Agricultural One (A-1) district is 8.1 ha (20.0 ac) while the 
parcel size range for the Agricultural Two (A-2) district is 8.1 ha (20 ac) to 32.0 ha (79.1 ac). 

The purpose of the A-2 district is to allow for smaller agricultural operations while preserving agricultural 
lands, this would include the continued use of the riding arena and dugout for livestock. The proposed land 
use would be compatible with adjacent agricultural operations and complies with requirements under the 
MGA, MDP, and Land Use Bylaw 18-800. 

An approach exists to access the proposed rezoning area. Construction of an approach to the balance will be 
a condition of approval of the subdivision. Road widening was previously taken on the west side of the quarter 
section adjacent to Range Road 194. 

Proposed Servicing: Private, cistern, and open discharge 
Soil Type: Clay 
Topography:  Flat 

50



 
 

 

Wetland Inventory:  14 – some swamp within a quarter section  
Farmland Rating:  Rezoning area: 6.0 & 32.0; Remainder: 32.0 & 28.15 
 
MDP 15-742 Section 3.4.2 Subdivision of Better Agricultural Land 
Greenview may support the subdivision of better agricultural land where the proposed subdivision is for: 

(a) A farmstead separation; 
 Section 3.4.4 Parcel Location 
Where possible, subdivisions identified in 3.4.2 will be encouraged to locate on portions of a quarter section 
that are: 

(b) Adjacent to or near quarter section boundaries to minimize the fragmentation of agricultural land and 
without constraining or otherwise impacting agricultural operations on the quarter section. 
  

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The redesignation would allow the landowner to subdivide the existing farmstead with minimal 

disturbance to the remaining agricultural lands. 
 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The redesignation and subsequent subdivision would create a rural residential parcel, an 
unsustainable method of housing when costs, levels, and delivery of services are considered. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Alternative #1: Council has the alternative to table Bylaw 22-920 for further discussion or information. 
 
Alternative #2: Council has the alternative to deny the request completely and not allow the rezoning. The 
proposed amendment is contemplated by the existing legislation and does not, in and of itself, represent an 
issue from Administration’s perspective. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Consult  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Consult - To obtain public feedback on analysis, alternatives and/or decisions. 
  

51



 
 

 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Consult - We will keep you informed, listen to and acknowledge concerns and aspirations, and provide 
feedback on how public input influenced the decision  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
In accordance with MGA S.692(4); the landowner will be notified of the decision made by Council; if first 
reading is given, the proposed Bylaw will be publicly advertised, and adjacent landowners and appropriate 
referral agencies will be notified. Affected parties will have the opportunity to comment or attend the Public 
Hearing. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Bylaw 22-920 
• Aerial Map 
• Overview Map 
• Farmland Report 
• Wetland Inventory 
• Owner Location Map 
• MGA Sections 

52



 

  BYLAW NO. 22-920 
 of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
  

Bylaw 22-920 

 

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of  
Alberta, to amend Bylaw No. 18-800, being the Land Use Bylaw for the 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

PURSUANT TO Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26, R.S.A.  
2000, as Amended, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled, enacts as 
follows: 

1. That Map No. 21 in the Land Use Bylaw, being Bylaw No. 18-800, be amended to reclassify the 
following area: 

All that Portion of the 
Northwest (NW) Quarter of Section Four (4) 

Within Township Sixty-Nine (69) 
Range Nineteen (19) West of the Fifth Meridian (W5M) 

 
As identified on Schedule “A” attached.  

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing. 
 
Read a first time this        day of                      , A.D.,             . 
 
Read a second time this        day of                      , A.D.,             . 
 
Read a third time and passed this        day of                      , A.D.,             . 

 
 

       
REEVE       

  
       
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER   

 
 
  
  
  

53



Bylaw 22-920   

 
SCHEDULE “A” 

 
To Bylaw No. 22-920 

 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 
All that Portion of the 

Northwest (NW) Quarter of Section Four (4) 
Within Township Sixty-Nine (69) 

Range Nineteen (19) West of the Fifth Meridian (W5M) 
 

Is reclassified from Agricultural One (A-1) District to Agricultural Two (A-2) District as identified below: 
 

 

54



55



56



FARMLAND REPORT 
 

FILE NO. A22-007 LEGAL LOCATION: NW 4-69-19-W5 
APPLICANT: LYNCH RICHARD & GENIE LANDOWNER: SAME 
 

 

57



 

 
 

 

58



WETLAND INVENTORY 
 

FILE NO. A22-007 LEGAL LOCATION: NW 4-69-19-W5 
APPLICANT: LYNCH RICHARD & GENIE LANDOWNER: SAME 
 

 
 Bog    Fen    Marsh 
 Open Water   Swamp 

 

59



M.D. of Greenview
No.16

Township 69, Range 19

Page 313 of 394

Map printed: 2021-12-30
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 makes no representation or warranties regarding the information contained in this document,
including, without limitation, whether said information is accurate or complete. Persons using this document do so solely
at their own risk, and M.D. of Greenview No. 16 shall have no liability to such persons for any loss or damage whatsoever.

This document shall not be copied or distributed to any person without the express written consent of M.D. of Greenview
No. 16.

 © 2021 M.D. of Greenview No. 16. All Rights Reserved.

Compiled from the Rural Cadastral Digital Base September 15, 2020, 1:20,000 Digital Base. Land Ownership compiled
from municipal tax data, September 15, 2020. Building/Site/Feature information compiled from municipal assessment
data, December 2019.

NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ERRORS OR OMMISIONS

60

Nicole.Friesen
Line

Nicole.Friesen
Text Box
Subject Property



M.D. of Greenview No. 16 makes no representation or warranties regarding
the information contained in this document, including, without limitation,
whether said information is accurate or complete. Persons using this
document do so solely at their own risk, and M.D. of Greenview No. 16 shall
have no liability to such persons for any loss or damage whatsoever.

This document shall not be copied or distributed to any person without the
express written consent of M.D. of Greenview No. 16.

 © 2022 M.D. of Greenview No. 16. All Rights Reserved.

Compiled from the Rural Cadastral Digital Base November 15, 2021,
1:20,000 Digital Base. Land Ownership compiled from municipal tax data,
November 15, 2021. Building/Site/Feature information compiled from
municipal assessment data, December 2020.

Hamlet and Subdivision Sheets

NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ERRORS OR OMMISIONS

61

Nicole.Friesen
Polygon



 

 

62



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Bylaw 22-921 Land Use Bylaw Amendment to Redesignate a ±4.86-ha (12.0-ac) area 
within Plan 1024120; 1; 1 (Part of SW 5-70-6-W6) from Agricultural Two (A-2) to 
Direct Control (DC) 

SUBMISSION TO: REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIR: SAS PRESENTER: NF 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Development LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.M-26 s.640, 641, 692. 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – Municipal Development Plan (MDP) Bylaw 15-742 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Council give first reading to Bylaw 22-921, being a Land Use Bylaw Amendment to 
redesignate a ±4.86-ha (12.0-ac) area within Plan 1024120; 1; 1 (Part of SW 5-70-6-W6) from Agricultural 
Two (A-2) to Direct Control (DC) to accommodate a Manufacturing Plan, Small Scale. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Land Use Bylaw Amendment 22-905 and the corresponding Grovedale Area Structure Plan Bylaw 22-902 to 
redesignate the ±4.86-hectare (12.0 acre) area within Plan 1024120, Block 1, Lot 1 (Part of SW 5-70-6-W6) 
from Agricultural Two (A-2) to Industrial Light (M-1) was deferred by Council following the Public Hearing on 
August 23, 2022. Many adjacent landowner letters in opposition of the redesignation were received; as a 
result, Council directed Administration to prepare an alternative Bylaw to redesignate the subject area as 
Direct Control (DC) district. 

The purpose of the Direct Control (DC) district is to accommodate developments in locations that require 
specific directions unavailable in other land use districts defined within the Land Use Bylaw. The Direct 
Control (DC) district would designate Council as the Development Authority for the subject lands; there are 
no permitted uses within the DC district. Unlike permitted or discretionary use Development Permits issued 
by Administration or the Municipal Planning Commission (MPC), those issued by Council in a Direct Control 
(DC) district may not be appealed.

Proposed Servicing: Private, existing 
Soil Type: Clay 
Topography:  Flat 
Wetland Inventory: 65 – no wetlands within the subject area 
Farmland Rating: None 

MDP 15-742 Section 6.3.2 Location of Development 

63



 
 

 

(b) Greenview may permit the establishment of industrial uses in agricultural areas if the proposed 
development: 

(i) Is a small-scale industrial pursuit as defined in the LUB; 
  

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The redesignation would allow the landowner to apply to utilize the existing shop while allowing 

Council to apply conditions not otherwise required by the Land Use Bylaw in an Industrial District. 
Council may apply conditions to development on the subject lands to mitigate disturbance to adjacent 
residents. 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The redesignation and subsequent use of the existing shop may upset adjacent landowners if 
adequate conditions are not applied or complied with by the developer. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Alternative #1: Council has the alternative to table Bylaw 22-921 for further discussion or information. 
 
Alternative #2: Council has the alternative to refuse first reading. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
The proposed bylaw was brought forward at the request of Council, so all associated costs will be borne by 
Greenview. Costs include advertising and adjacent landowner letters. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
If the rezoning is approved, all development applications within the subject area will be discretionary, 
requiring additional staff time as well as Council time. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  
 
INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Consult  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Consult - To obtain public feedback on analysis, alternatives and/or decisions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Consult - We will keep you informed, listen to and acknowledge concerns and aspirations, and provide 
feedback on how public input influenced the decision  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
In accordance with MGA S.692(4); the landowner will be notified of the decision made by Council; if first 
reading is given, the proposed Bylaw will be publicly advertised, and adjacent landowners and appropriate 

64



 
 

 

referral agencies will be notified. Affected parties will have the opportunity to comment or attend the Public 
Hearing. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Bylaw 22-921 
• Aerial Map 
• Overview Map 
• Farmland Report 
• Wetland Inventory 
• Owner Location Map 
• MGA Sections 

65



66



67



FARMLAND REPORT 
 

FILE NO. A22-008 LEGAL LOCATION: Plan 1024120; 1; 1 
APPLICANT: GREENVIEW LANDOWNER: R.B. CURRY AUTO TRANSPORT LTD. 

 
 

68



 
 

69



WETLAND INVENTORY 
 

FILE NO. A22-008 LEGAL LOCATION: Plan 1024120; 1; 1 
APPLICANT: GREENVIEW LANDOWNER: R.B. CURRY AUTO TRANSPORT LTD. 
 

 
 Bog    Fen    Marsh 
 Open Water   Swamp 

 

70



M.D. of Greenview
No.16

Township 70, Range 6

Page 347 of 394

Map printed: 2021-12-30
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 makes no representation or warranties regarding the information contained in this document,
including, without limitation, whether said information is accurate or complete. Persons using this document do so solely
at their own risk, and M.D. of Greenview No. 16 shall have no liability to such persons for any loss or damage whatsoever.

This document shall not be copied or distributed to any person without the express written consent of M.D. of Greenview
No. 16.

 © 2021 M.D. of Greenview No. 16. All Rights Reserved.

Compiled from the Rural Cadastral Digital Base September 15, 2020, 1:20,000 Digital Base. Land Ownership compiled
from municipal tax data, September 15, 2020. Building/Site/Feature information compiled from municipal assessment
data, December 2019.

NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ERRORS OR OMMISIONS

71

Alyssebarks
Line

Alyssebarks
Text Box
Subject Property



M.D. of Greenview No. 16 makes no representation or warranties regarding
the information contained in this document, including, without limitation,
whether said information is accurate or complete. Persons using this
document do so solely at their own risk, and M.D. of Greenview No. 16 shall
have no liability to such persons for any loss or damage whatsoever.

This document shall not be copied or distributed to any person without the
express written consent of M.D. of Greenview No. 16.

 © 2022 M.D. of Greenview No. 16. All Rights Reserved.

Compiled from the Rural Cadastral Digital Base November 15, 2021,
1:20,000 Digital Base. Land Ownership compiled from municipal tax data,
November 15, 2021. Building/Site/Feature information compiled from
municipal assessment data, December 2020.

Hamlet and Subdivision Sheets

NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ERRORS OR OMMISIONS

72

Nicole.Friesen
Polygon



 

73



 

74



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: High-speed internet for Greenview Ratepayers 
SUBMISSION TO: REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER: KK 
DEPARTMENT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIR: SAS PRESENTER: KK 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Economy LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) –N/A 
Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) –N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Council approves the High-Speed Low Earth Satellite funding program for Greenview 
residences to access High-Speed internet service, with funding to come from the 2022 Economic 
Development Capital budget, to be implemented once corresponding policy is approved by Council. 

MOTION: That Council directs Administration to create a policy for the purpose of delivering the Greenview 
High-Speed Low Earth Satellite program to Greenview residences.   

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Greenview, like many other northern Alberta municipalities, is a vast region with a sparse population. These 
factors pose a challenge for a strong business case for the development of internet/utility services provided 
by for-profit businesses, as the return on investment is significant.   

In short, the build-out costs to provide fibre to Greenview residences, “not including the Hamlet of Grande 
Cache, which is already serviced by fibre-optic line,” is estimated to be $31,000,000.00. Administration is 
seeking guidance as to Council’s position, keeping in mind the current economic climate, cost of materials, 
and the Federal government’s need for broadband service to become a mandatory utility by 2030. 

As an alternative Administration is proposing a one-time grant program. This program will provide a similar 
benefit to residents with significantly reduced costs to Greenview. This could dramatically reduce future 
operational costs and ongoing liability or asset depreciation concerns. The model was reviewed at the 
September 20, 2022, Committee of the Whole session. 

If ratepayers are satisfied with their current service, the one-time grant could be utilized to offset service fees 
from their current provider, whether they are either locally owned and operated or national service 
providers.  

This model follows similar initiatives already pursued by the provinces of Nova Scotia, Quebec, and the 
Federal Government of Canada. 

75



 
 

 

 
Funding to come from Economic Development Capital Funding Budget 2022-2023 ($9,000,000.00)  
 
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is an educated decision can be made to 
provide the same level of service to residents, in a shorter period, with less liability and cost to the 
Municipal District of Greenview. 

 
2. Lower cost to Greenview and time spent on this project by Administration. 
 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are some risks to being a leader of the future with newer technology: 
• Network is still being developed 
• Requirement for ratepayers to pay upfront costs prior to receiving grant funds. 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 

Alternative #1: Council has the alternative to continue with the Fiber-optic line program for 
Greenview. Administration does not recommend proceeding with fibre-optic for the following 
reasons:  

1. While fibre-optic lines offer marginally faster service to residences, the cost of installation, 
operation, and maintenance results in higher future operational costs.  

2. These costs are significantly higher than the low earth satellite option.  
3. The anticipated fibre-optic to residence cost is $31,000,000.00 for 85% of Greenview 

residence coverage.  
4. The ongoing operational and liability costs are estimated to be $3,000,000.00 every five 

years thereafter. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs: $5,893,000.00 Reserves in Economic Development Capital Budget 2022 and 2023. 
Ongoing / Future Costs: After Program completion (December 2024), no additional or ongoing costs 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
To support the program Administration recommends a contracted employee is hired for a 2-year period to 
facilitate the program and to work with the taxation department to ensure the program operates efficiently 
and is not subject to abuse/overbilling. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

76



 
 

 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Consult - To obtain public feedback on analysis, alternatives and/or decisions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 

• Upon Council’s Decision, Administration will close the Request for Proposal for Broadband service and 
develop the material needed to advise ratepayers of the upcoming opportunity in 2023. 

• Send letters to current regional service providers outlining how this program could be utilized to 
incentivize continued customers and enhance services to their current customers.  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Copy of the - Committee of the Whole PowerPoint presentation for reference  

 

77



Greenview High-Speed Internet 
Solutions 

2022

78



Currently

• Over the summer of 2022, Administration posted a Request for Proposal 
to seek out potential partners and costs for establishment of a fiber 
optic network to cover the Municipal District of Greenview.

• Greenview received only one response to the Request for Proposal.

• While the Request for Proposal was very detailed, the anticipated cost 
to complete services to the majority of premises within Greenview, was 
substantially higher than originally proposed.

2
79



Next steps
• Due to Greenview’s vast size, low population density, high cost of 

deployment, and the anticipated low return on investment, the 
Greenview area is a low priority for fiber optic deployment by 
businesses.

• While this case is duplicated in many rural municipalities throughout 
Canada, Administration would like to suggest a second option for 
providing this high-speed internet service to Greenview residents.

80



Anticipated cost
• Based on the current best estimate the anticipated cost for fiber to 

premise for Greenview’s residents is:
• The expected cost to reach approximately 85% of Greenview’s residents 

is $29,500,000.00 (with a fiber optic line to the premise). With an 
anticipated completion date of 24 months and then ongoing operational 
and maintenance costs. – this does not include the Hamlet of Grande 
Cache which is already serviced by Canadian Fiber Optic’s Northern 
Lights division.

• First 5 years cost per premise (building)
• $29,500,000.00 + $3,000,000.00 (anticipated 5-year operational 

costs) = $32,500,000.00 / 5493 premises = $5,916.62 cost per 
premise for years 1-5.

81



82



Alternative to attain similar
• Administration has taken the summer period to also consider 

alternative options to reaching the goal of high-speed internet for the 
residents and businesses of Greenview.

• It observed that several governments are coming across the same cost-
benefit obstacles as Greenview. The proposed model for Greenview  
(the actual model utilized by the provinces of Nova Scotia and Quebec. 
And the federal government of Canada) is to provide a one-time grant to 
residents.

83



Low Earth Satellite option for 
High-Speed internet
• Greenview could provide an internally funded grant program for rural 

premises that would be applicable to homes and businesses (structures 
within Greenview).

• This is similar to the programs being offered in Nova Scotia and Quebec and 
even the Federal Government for premise in northern Manitoba.- where 
the business models indicate that it is not profitable for fiber optic to be run 
to private premises in these locations.

84



• Utilizing a model similar to this program, Administration is suggesting a 
“one-time grant” for each premise and business structure within 
Greenview.

• Working with 2021 Statistic Canada figures (to be confirmed by 
Greenview Taxation and Planning departments.) the grant program 
would provide a one-time grant of $1,000.00 to cover the acquisition of 
equipment and one month’s internet fees.

• $750.00* + $140.00*/monthly fee = $900.00 (* Star Link eff.Sept,2022)

• Rounding up to $1,000.00 at 5493 structures (not including Valleyview, 
Fox Creek, or Sturgeon Lake) but including the Hamlet of Grande Cache.

• Cost of Program $5,493,000.00

• Cost per premise = to $1,042.27

85



Grant Funds Utilization
• Greenview residents would be able to acquire a Star link home internet 

system: $750.00 + $140.00/monthly fee = $900.00
• This option would be for homes without internet service and those 

who wish to upgrade from Dial-up or other service levels.
• Alternatively, if a resident is satisfied with their current service 

provider EG: providers in the DeBolt, Ridge valley, or Highway 43 
corridor, these funds could be used to offset costs or upgrade 
hardware as the ratepayer sees fit.

• For premises and establishments in Grande Cache or along Highway 
40, these funds could be used to offset the installation of a 
dedicated Fiber-optic line, monthly fees, or alternative use.

• Currently, only Star link offers the prescribed speeds as outlined by 
the Federal Government Low Earth Satellite providers.

• Should other providers become available before the closing date of 
the program residents could subscribe to those new providers.

86



Potential Benefit to Greenview 
Fibre Optic vs Satellite 

Fibre Optic 
Pros: 
• Proven service 
• Fastest upload download speed
• Weather impact on service is minimal
Cons:
• High installation cost
• Line breakage
• Set up Time 2+ years  
• Distance users – a high cost borne by those who are remote within Greenview 
• Residents are required to pay the hookup feed from the street:  Estimate $1,800.00 per 

home
• Liability of owned infrastructure
• Management of a pseudo-utility; estimate of $3,000,000.00 inputs for first 5 years in costs.
• Ongoing legal costs and agreement maintenance

87



Satellite 
Pro:

• Meets the Federal Government’s broadband requirements

• Provides faster speeds than existing satellite networks

• Costs would be approximately $5,493,000.00

• Administration cost to manage the program for a 2-year period est. = $400,000.00

• Cost per premise / premise = to $1,072.82 per premise/premise.
Cons:

• The Star link network is still being developed.  

• Up front cost to ratepayers

88



Overall benefit
• Overall program savings of $26,774,800.00 
• The funding for this internally funded grant program is already 

available/accounted for in the Economic Development Capital budget = 
$9,000,000.00 over 2022/2023.  Thereby saving $3,107,000.00 in actual 
funding.

• Additionally, there are no ongoing yearly costs to Greenview for the 
management and operation of the fiber optic lines/ no ongoing business 
relationship to manage

• Because the grant funding would be for the recipient to utilize a      
third-party provider, no additional maintenance costs, depreciation or 
operational inputs would be required on behalf of Greenview. Thereby 
reducing Greenview’s future liability costs.

89



Federal Grants
• With Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission 

legislating that broadband is an essential service, the second round of 
federal grant monies should be up for application in late 2021. They are 
looking for shovel-ready projects.

• Greenview should pursue federal, provincial, and association grant 
funding opportunities where applicable, in an effort to reduce overall 
costs further.

90



Link to external programs
External data sources:

• Province of Nova Scotia
• https://internet.developns.ca/satellite/
• https://internet.developns.ca/satellite/how-it-works/
• https://internet.developns.ca/satellite/faqs/

• Quebec Government offer incentive program for rural Quebecers
• https://mobilesyrup.com/2022/06/17/quebec-rural-homes-subsidized-starlink/

• Federal Government of Canada
• https://www.canada.ca/en/innovation-science-economic-

development/news/2022/05/government-of-canada-invests-over-1-million-to-bring-
high-speed-internet-to-up-to-1162households-in-manitoba.html

91

https://internet.developns.ca/satellite/
https://internet.developns.ca/satellite/how-it-works/
https://internet.developns.ca/satellite/faqs/
https://mobilesyrup.com/2022/06/17/quebec-rural-homes-subsidized-starlink/
https://www.canada.ca/en/innovation-science-economic-development/news/2022/05/government-of-canada-invests-over-1-million-to-bring-high-speed-internet-to-up-to-1162households-in-manitoba.html


Final Thoughts
• Greenview is already seeing increased interest in residents moving to 

Grande Cache. Economic Development fields 2-3 calls per month on 
Grande Cache-specific business inquiries, and high-speed internet is 
always near the top of the discussion.

• Administration believes a variation of the needed service can be proved 
at a lower cost and in a model that reduces the long-term operating / 
capital costs and liabilities to Greenview.
Regarding the Current Request for Proposal:

• It will not be awarded to any proponents. – this should mitigate any 
legalities.

• Move forward with the new program
• It would then be considered a Grant Program (different than Request for 

Proposal) this could be managed by a contracted or short-term (2yrs) 
staff member and could utilize the soon-to-be new Grant Portal as 
outlined by Community Services. 

92



Near future
• Close Request for Proposal with no award.
• Have a legal contract/agreement developed for the Greenview Grant 

• Hire a contracted 2-year term staff to administer the program and work 
with taxation and planning to scrutinize the use and finances of the 
program.

• Send out mail out to residents advising of the options for the new Grant 
program.

• Initiate program in January 2023 with a plan to conclude on Dec 31, 
2024

93



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Mountain Métis Nation Association (MMNA) Land Sale 
SUBMISSION TO: REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & EC. DEVELOPMENT DIR: SAS PRESENTER: MAV 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.M-26 s.70. 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) –N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Council proceeds to offer the sale of the property identified as Plan 9722089; Block 34; Lot 
14 to the Mountain Métis Nation Association for the market value of $424,000.  

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
On September 20, 2022, at the Committee of the Whole, the Mountain Métis Nation Association (MMNA) 
presented its request to purchase the property, legally described as Plan 9722089; Block 34; Lot 14 (104 
Avenue and Golf Course Road, Grande Cache, AB). They requested these lands to be sold to them at a 
nominal value rather than market value. Administration has undertaken a market value appraisal, and any 
sale of the land for less than market value requires a public offering under the Municipal Government Act, 
R.S.A. 2000, c.M-26 s.70. In addition to this, the cost for the development of this property would include the 
necessity to upgrade services to the property and those costs have not yet been fully evaluated.  

The MMNA would like to obtain the lands now to proceed with grants, design, and construction prior to the 
spring; however, this may make recouping the cost of future service upgrades difficult if Council should wish 
to pass those costs onto the MMNA in the future. 

“3.44 Market Value – The most probable price, as of a specific date, in cash, or in terms equivalent to cash, or 
in precisely revealed terms, for which the specified property rights should sell after reasonable exposure in a 
competitive market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, with the buy and the seller each acting 
prudently, knowledgeably, and for self-interest, assuming that neither is under duress.” 

The subject property is one vacant lot which is ± 155,074 sq. ft. (3.56 acres) in area, and zoned “Parks and 
Open Space District (POS)”. The property is identified as Plan 9722089; Block 34; Lot 14 excepting thereout 
all mines and minerals.  

This value is determined assuming that the lot is serviced and in its current state. 

94



 
 

 

 
Administration recommends that should Council decide to sell the subject land to the MMNA, the market 
value of $424,000 would be the appropriate negotiated value for the property. Any valuation less than this 
amount would not meet the direct sale requirements of the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.M-26 s.70. 
 
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

1. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is that the MMNA Cultural Centre can 
proceed with construction.  

2. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is that Council receives market value to 
help offset the costs of servicing in the area. 

3. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is that this will meet the Value of Culture 
within our strategic plan by “honouring the diversity of our communities and residents” 

4. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is that the MMNA does not risk losing its 
selected site due to a public offering. 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

1. The disadvantage of Council accepting the recommended motion is Greenview will be required to 
upgrade existing services in the area to ensure development may proceed on site. 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: That the property is offered at less than market value through a public offering for any use 
which would fit within the “Parks and Open Space District” designation of the land. The disadvantage to this 
alternative is the MMNA may not be a successful proponent in obtaining the land. 
Alternative #2: Council may direct the sale of the land until such time that they have engineering costs 
determined and place a portion of these costs on to the value of the sale of this property. The disadvantage 
of this is that it further delays the proposal and may make its development unsuccessful due to cost. 
Alternative #3: Council may refuse the sale of the land and consider alternative uses for this property. The 
disadvantage is that these lands may remain undeveloped for the foreseeable future. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
The financial implications have costs for the completion of the sale, and future servicing of the site to be 
determined. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
 

95



 
 

 

 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will proceed with the completion of the land and the support for the development permits on 
the subject site. Infrastructure and Engineering are proceeding with tender documents to determine the cost 
and design of services, which will be reflected in the 2023 budget. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• N/A 
 
 

96



 

97



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Mozart Mission Sponsorship 
SUBMISSION TO: REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES DIR: MH PRESENTER: LL 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – Policy 8004- Sponsorships and Donations 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Council approve a grant of $25,000 to the Mozart Mission for the purpose of purchasing a 
3D Surgical System with funds to come from the 2022 Community Services Grants and Sponsorships 
budget. 

MOTION: That Council approve a donation in kind up to $500.00 to the Mozart Mission for the Mozart 
Mixer on October 1, 2022 at the JP Events Centre in Grande Prairie, with funds to come from the 2022 
Community Services Grants and Sponsorships budget. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
The Mozart Mission is requesting a gift-in-kind (i.e. silent auction items) for the Mozart Mixer scheduled for 
October 1, 2022 at the JP Events Center in Grande Prairie or a donation amount of Council’s choosing. 

The Mozart Mission presented to the Committee of the Whole on September 20, 2022. This non-profit 
organization is made up of a team of individuals who have personally been affected by breast cancer and are 
fundraising for an upgraded breast surgery system at the Grande Prairie Regional Hospital.  The Mozart 
Mission has partnered with the Hospital Foundation and Alberta Health Services have approved the use of 
the new machine. The machine will ensure that all traces of cancer in patient’s breasts are removed during 
initial surgery, illuminating future surgeries, and alleviating the strain on our health care system. 

The Mozart Mixer is a dinner and silent auction fundraising event for the purchase of a Mozart 3D System at 
the Grande Prairie Regional Hospital.  Tickets for the event are $75.00 each or $600.00 to reserve a table for 
8 people, however the tickets have been sold out.  In their fundraising efforts, the Mozart Mission has also 
reached out to the County of Grande Prairie, Town of Sexsmith, Municipal District of Spirit River, Saddle Hills 
County, and numerous local businesses. 

146



 
 

 

While the initial request is as described above, Administration has learned that other like organizations to 
Greenview have committed a funding amount of $25,000.00 and has therefore based the recommended 
motion on that.  
 
The total cost of the Mozart 3D System is $275,000.00.  Funding in the amount of $156,000.00 has been 
raised as of August 5, 2022.   
 
The balance of the Community Services Miscellaneous Grants Budget as of September 26 is $592,959.93. 
 
  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motions is that Greenview will support a vital 
piece of equipment that will benefit the residents of communities within the region. 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motions. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Council has the alternative to provide a donation in-kind or sponsorship in the amount of 
their choosing or take no action to the recommended motions. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs: $25000.00 
Ongoing / Future Costs: N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motions. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 

147



 
 

 

FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will advise the Mozart Mission of Council’s decision. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Application 
• Mozart Mission Information 

148



8/8/22, 3:47 PM Print Row - Smartsheet.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=598714413&parm2=64582719161&ss_v=179.0.0 1/3

Greenview Sponsorship and
Donation Request Form
Row 13

Organization or
Person
Requesting Funds

The Mozart Mission

Date of
Application 08/05/22

Form Date Field 102

Date of Event 10/01/22

Phone Number 780 831-8558

Purpose of
Organization ckimble@xplornet.com

Mailing Address 50031 - TWP RD 714A County of Grande Prairie No. 1, AB T8X
4B3

Funding Request
Total

This machine costs $275,000. Any amount towards the purchase
will be appreciated.

Type of
sponsorship
request

Event Gifts-in-kind (i.e. silent auction items) Table

Describe your
organization

The Mozart Mission is a team of individuals who have been
personally affected by Breast Cancer. We are fundraising for an
upgraded Breast surgery system - the Mozart 3D System for the
Grande Prairie Regional Hospital.

Intended Purpose We are fundraising for the Mozart 3D System. Total cost of this
machine is $275,000. To date, we have raised $156,000.

Direct Goals The Mozart Systems allows 3D imagining of cancerous breast
tissue during surgery. It will clearly identify clear cancer margins
thus reducing additional required surgeries. Patients will benefit
greatly by saving time and the stress of further surgeries. The
Mozart system will provide patients comfort knowing that all
cancer was removed the first time.

Where/When? Our fundraising event, The Mozart Mixer, is a dinner and silent
auction taking place on October 1, 2022 at the JP Events Center
in Grande Prairie. Tickets are $75 each or reserve a table of 8 for
$600. We are also graciously accepting items to be included in
our silent auction.

Benefit to
residents of
Greenview

Any man or women who has been diagnosed with Breast Cancer
and requires surgery at the Grande Prairie Regional Hospital will
benefit from the purchase of the Mozart 3D system.149



8/8/22, 3:47 PM Print Row - Smartsheet.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=598714413&parm2=64582719161&ss_v=179.0.0 2/3

Funding from
others

The cost of the Mozart 3D system is $275,000. To date, we have
raised $156,000. Our committee has reached out to the following
municipalities: County of GP, Town of Sexsmith, MD of Spirit
River, Saddle Hills County and also numerous local businesses.

Recognition If the MD of Greenview donates a monetary donation to the
Mozart Mission, a tax receipt from the GP Hospital Foundation
will be issued. The GP Hospital Foundation has an electronic
donor wall within the GPRH that will display those who have
contributed. At the Mozart Mixer event, donors will be recognized
by either table sponsorship, and by the MC of the event. And all
donors will be publicly thanked through social media.

Previous Donation This is a one-time only request for funding towards the purchase
of the Mozart 3D system.

Grant Funds
Received from
other sources?

Have you
performed any
other fundraising
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Year Grant
Received

Amount of Grant

List the donaee,
purpose and
amount

What type of
fundraising & how
much did you
raise?

Signature

Date

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email

Column41

150



8/8/22, 3:47 PM Print Row - Smartsheet.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=598714413&parm2=64582719161&ss_v=179.0.0 3/3

MD Logo

Email Comm.

Column44

List for
Recognition

Contact Name(s) Cheryl Kimble

Column47

Logo Permission

Agreement with
Statement

Signature1 Cheryl Kimble

FOIP Disclosure

151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Violence Threat Risk Assessment (VTRA) Level Two Training Sponsorship 
SUBMISSION TO: REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES DIR: MH PRESENTER: LL 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – Policy 8004- Sponsorships and Donations 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Council approve a sponsorship up to $18,000.00 to the Northern Gateway Public School 
Division for the Violence Threat Risk Assessment (VTRA) level two training on November 1 and November 
2, 2022, at the Burnside Performing Arts Centre in Valleyview, with funds to come from Community 
Services Miscellaneous Grants. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
The Northern Gateway Public School Division is requesting a sponsorship of $17,491.00 for the Violence 
Threat Risk Assessment (VTRA) level two training on November 1 and November 2, 2022, at the Burnside 
Performing Arts Centre in Valleyview. 

The Northern Gateway Public School Division operates 16 schools, four colony schools and four off-campus 
outreach programs serving just under 5,000 learners, with 4 schools located in the Municipal District of 
Greenview (Valleyview-3, Fox Creek-1). 

Administered through the North American Center for Threat Assessment and Trauma Response (NACTATR), 
the course is intended to integrate various community agencies such as The Northern Gateway Public 
Schools, RCMP, Mental Health and Children and Family Services to anticipate the threat of violence by 
individuals against others or themselves, and to reduce the impact of trauma within communities. 
The VTRA protocol was developed in Alberta twenty years ago after the Columbine and Taber school 
shootings in April of 1999. VTRA utilizes a multi-disciplinary team (school staff, RCMP, peace officers, 
medical professionals, mental health, children and family services, fire departments and any other agency 
with relevant information) which is activated when there is a direct, clear and plausible threat to the 
schools or individuals, allowing for a baseline of the subject’s behaviour to be established in as quickly as 
one hour. 

After the baseline behaviour has been established, a determination can be made if the subject’s violence is 
increasing rapidly, what intervention is most appropriate in the first instance and which tasks should be 

169



 
 

 

completed by the most appropriate community agency. 
 
It is timely intervention that prevents school shootings and other violent incidents. The program also looks 
at longer term solutions, providing assistance to allow the subject to be reintegrated into the communities 
and schools. 
 
VTRA is used in 281 communities across Canada and in approximately 45% of the school divisions in Alberta.  
  
Greenview sponsored up to $20,000.00 for level one VTRA training in Valleyview in 2019 to cover all costs 
associated with this training.  Administration recently received feedback from the Staff Sergeant who initiated 
the level one VTRA training, he said the impact the training had in the Greenview communities is immense 
and he is very supportive of the level two VTRA training.  
 
The balance of the Community Services Miscellaneous Grants Budget as of September 26 is $592,959.93. 
 
  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is that Greenview will be instrumental in 
providing training to various agencies who are responsible for the health and wellbeing of 
communities within Greenview. 
 

2. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is that Greenview will be a leader in 
providing important training to various agencies that work within Greenview communities. 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Council has the alternative to provide sponsorship in the amount of their choosing or take no 
action to the recommended motion, however Administration does no recommend this as it could prompt a 
registration fee making it difficult for key agencies to attend. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs: $18,000.00 
Ongoing / Future Costs: N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

170



 
 

 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will advise the Northern Gateway School Division of Council’s decision. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Application 
• Training Costs 

171



9/8/22, 1:54 PM Print Row - Smartsheet.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=598714413&parm2=70466995039&ss_v=188.0.0 1/3

Greenview Sponsorship and
Donation Request Form
Row 15

Organization or
Person
Requesting Funds

Northern Gateway Public School Division

Date of
Application 09/08/22

Form Date Field 104

Date of Event 11/01/22

Phone Number 780-778-2800

Purpose of
Organization tammy.charko@ngps.ca

Mailing Address Box 840 4816-49 Avenue Whitecourt AB T7S1N8

Funding Request
Total 17,491.00

Type of
sponsorship
request

Event

Describe your
organization

Northern Gateway Public School Division has 4 schools within
the MD Greenview boundaries and is the main lead in ensuring
that schools and community partners are trained in Level One
and Two Violent Threat Risk Assessment (VTRA). We work
closely with all partners in each community our schools are
located to ensure the safety of students, staff, families and the
community. In 2019 with the generous sponsorship of the
Municipal District of Greenview, Northern Gateway Public School
Division coordinated training for 60 community members in Level
One VTRA. Due to COVID, we were unable to coordinate Level
Two training until now.

Intended Purpose The purpose of the funds are to have the training be easily
accessible and breakdown the barriers for all partners that serve
the Municipal District of Greenview and beyond to be trained in
the Level 2. Please see the attached breakdown of costs for the
training.

Direct Goals The goals of Violence Threat Risk Assessment (VTRA) Level Two
are to train and certify individuals within a broad scope of
agencies that can monitor, assess, intervene against and prevent
violence within a community. VTRA provides the tools to identify
and provide assessment between someone who is talking about
violence versus one who will actually follow-through.

172



9/8/22, 1:54 PM Print Row - Smartsheet.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=598714413&parm2=70466995039&ss_v=188.0.0 2/3

Where/When? November 1 and 2, 2022 at the Burnside Performing Arts Centre
in Valleyview, AB

Benefit to
residents of
Greenview

VTRA training is provided by The Center for Trauma Informed
Practices (CTIP, formerly called North American Center for Threat
Assessment and Trauma Response - NACTATR). CTIP is an
international organization with head offices in Lethbridge Alberta
and Chicago, USA. They partner with leaders in education, social
work, mental health, police and other community agencies to
more effectively prevent, intervene, and respond to crisis,
violence and conflict. When stakeholders in communities are
trained in VTRA Level One and Two, a collaborative framework
can be built. The outcome is that those trained and certified share
a coordinated and unified action, common language and
concepts and a mutual vision for success. After Level Two
training, community partners can sign a protocol with local
government and major agencies that serve Municipal District of
Greenview. This is a public display of solidarity in keeping the
community safe.

Funding from
others There are no other sources of funding for this event.

Recognition In all our correspondence such as registration forms, emails and
social media posts, recognition will be given to Greenview on
their support in this project.

Previous Donation As mentioned previously, Greenview awarded a limit up to
$20,000 in October 2019 for Level One Violent Threat Risk
Assessment Training.

Grant Funds
Received from
other sources?

Have you
performed any
other fundraising
projects?

Agreement

Grant Purpose

Year Grant
Received

Amount of Grant

List the donaee,
purpose and
amount

What type of
fundraising & how
much did you
raise?

Signature
173



9/8/22, 1:54 PM Print Row - Smartsheet.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/b/home?formName=fn_row&formAction=fa_printRow&parm1=598714413&parm2=70466995039&ss_v=188.0.0 3/3

Date

Financial
Statement

Administration
Recommendations

Email

Column41

MD Logo

Email Comm.

Column44

List for
Recognition

Contact Name(s) Tammy Charko

Column47

Logo Permission

Agreement with
Statement Northern Gateway Public Schools

Signature1 Tammy Charko, Student Support Facilitator

FOIP Disclosure

174



VTRA  Level Two
November 1 and 2, 2022

Valleyview, AB

Breakdown of Costs

Training incl GST and books
NACTATR/CTIP

12,600

Presenter travel and accommodation
Mileage from Stony Plain 628 total km X
.62=$390
Hotel $166 X 2 = $331
Meals
Dinner $40 X 3 =  $120
Breakfast $20 X 2 = $40

881

Meals for participants (approx 60 at $25 per
person per day)

3000

Venue Rental for 2 days (incl kitchen access
& clean-up)

800

Linens 110

Misc items (pens/notebooks/candy) 100

TOTAL 17,491

175



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Notice of Motion – Efficacy of Bounty Programs & Potential options 
SUBMISSION TO: REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: September 27, 2022 CAO: SW MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: CAO SERVICES DIR: PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Environment LEG: 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Council direct Administration to provide a report on the efficacy of Greenview’s bounty 
programs and potential options to cancel and or replace them. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
At the September 13, 2022, Regular Council Meeting, Councillor Berry made a Notice of Motion “that Council 
direct Administration to provide a report on the efficacy of Greenview’s bounty programs and potential 
options to cancel and or replace them”. 

When contemplating this motion, Administration recommends the consideration of the following. 

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The benefit of Council accepting the recommended motion is that Council will have an understanding

of potential options Greenview can employ to achieve its problem wildlife goals.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Council has the alternative to not proceed with the motion, however, Administration does 
not recommend this as the goal of the motion is to gain an understanding of potential options to deal with 
problem wildlife within Greenview and there is no cost attached. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There is no financial implication to the recommended motion. 
Direct Costs: N/A 
Ongoing / Future Costs: N/A 

176



STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation. 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed. 

FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
If the motion is accepted Administration will prepare a report and bring it back to Council for review. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

• N/A

177



NAME: Employee # :
ADDRESS : Department: Council

DATE DEPART ARRIVE  MEETING DESCRIPTION KM MEALS LODGING PER DIEM
TIME  CODE B L D AMOUNT EXPENSES

08-Sep 7:00 18:00 M MD Greenview Clayshoot/Travel to GP 450 1 20.00 447.00

09-Sep 8:00 11:00 M Travel to GC 200 1 20.00 262.00

12-Sep 20:00 22:00 M Travel to GP 200 1 50.00 262.00

13-Sep 7:00 16:00 M Council Meeting /Travel to GP 300 1 1 70.00 447.00

NOTES: KILOMETER CLAIM TOTAL 160.00 1418.00

RATE KM's TOTAL LESS GST

$0.61 per km 1150 701.50 NET CLAIM 160.00 1418.00

$0.17 per km 1150 195.50

SUBTOTAL 897.00 TOTAL CLAIM 2475.00

LESS G.S.T. LESS ADVANCES

TOTAL          897 AMOUNT DUE (OWING) $2,475.00

Date Date

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Claimant Approved

Meeting Code : M for Meetings

C for Conferences   

________________________ __________________________ __________________________

Winston Delorme 

178



NAME: Employee # :
ADDRESS : Department: Council

DATE DEPART ARRIVE  MEETING DESCRIPTION KM MEALS LODGING PER DIEM
TIME TIME  CODE B L D AMOUNT EXPENSES

01-Sep 8:00 13:00 Blossoming Garden of Hope tour 300

07-Sep 8:00 17:00 C Alberta CARE conference 350 447.00

07-Sep 19:00 20:00 Fox Creek Ec Dev & Tourism Board (ZOOM)

08-Sep 8:00 17:00 C Alberta CARE conference 447.00

09-Sep 8:00 17:00 C Alberta CARE conference 350 1 20.00 447.00

NOTES: KILOMETER CLAIM TOTAL 20.00 1341.00

RATE KM's TOTAL LESS GST

$0.55 per km 1000 550.00 NET CLAIM 20.00 1341.00

$0.26 per km 1000 260.00

SUBTOTAL 810.00 TOTAL CLAIM 2171.00

LESS G.S.T. LESS ADVANCES

TOTAL          810 AMOUNT DUE (OWING) $2,171.00

Date Date

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Claimant Approved

Ryan Ratzlaff

Meeting Code : M for Meetings

C for Conferences   

________________________ __________________________ __________________________ 179



NAME: Employee # :
ADDRESS : Department: Council

DATE DEPART ARRIVE  MEETING DESCRIPTION KM MEALS LODGING PER DIEM
2022 TIME TIME  CODE B L D AMOUNT EXPENSES

23-Aug 8:30 16:15 M Council 16 308.00

01-Sep 8:30 11:45 M Garden of Hope Tour 214 262.00

08-Sep 12:00 16:30 M Clay Shoot 46 308.00

NOTES: KILOMETER CLAIM TOTAL 878.00

RATE KM's TOTAL LESS GST

$0.61 per km 276 168.36 NET CLAIM 878.00

$0.17 per km 276 46.92

SUBTOTAL 215.28 TOTAL CLAIM 1093.28

LESS G.S.T. LESS ADVANCES

TOTAL          215.28 AMOUNT DUE (OWING) $1,093.28

Date Date

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Claimant Approved

Sally Ann Rosson

Meeting Code : M for Meetings

C for Conferences   

__________________________ ______________Sept 11, 2022 180



NAME: Employee # :
ADDRESS : Department: Council

DATE DEPART ARRIVE  MEETING DESCRIPTION KM MEALS LODGING PER DIEM
TIME TIME  CODE B L D AMOUNT EXPENSES

06-Sep 13:00 14:00 M Detecting feral swine DNA Zoom 262.00

06-Sep 19:00 20:00 M Crime Watch 30 262.00

07-Sep 19:00 20:00 M Fox creek Joint Ec Dev zoom 262.00

08-Sep 8:00 9:00 M Seed Plant 30 262.00

08-Sep 10:00 16:00 M Clay Shoot 40 308.00

10-Sep 10:00 11:00 M Golden Triangle zoom 262.00

NOTES: KILOMETER CLAIM TOTAL 1618.00

RATE KM's TOTAL LESS GST

$0.55 per km 100 55.00 NET CLAIM 1618.00

$0.26 per km 100 26.00

SUBTOTAL 81.00 TOTAL CLAIM 1699.00

LESS G.S.T. LESS ADVANCES

TOTAL          81 AMOUNT DUE (OWING) $1,699.00

Date Date

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Claimant Approved

Dave Berry

Meeting Code : M for Meetings

C for Conferences   

________________________ __________________________ __________________________ 181



NAME: Employee # :
ADDRESS : Department: Council

DATE DEPART ARRIVE  MEETING DESCRIPTION KM MEALS LODGING PER DIEM
TIME TIME  CODE B L D AMOUNT EXPENSES

08-Jun 12:15 15:45 m special mtg-AER 50 200.00

09-Jun 8:15 16:45 m road tour- vallevyvew area 50 398.00

10-Jun 7:35 15:30 m road tour - Debolt area 50 300.00

14-Jun 8:00 20:10 m Reg council mtg/ joint mtg town VV 50 555.08

15-Jun 8:15 12:15 m MPC/PRC 50 200.00

24-Jun 9:00 15:30 m Smoky Hemp seminar/tour 110 300.00

28-Jun 8:05 19:30 m regular council mtg/ratepayer bbq 50 555.08

01-Jul 11:00 13:00 m Canada Day Flag celebration 50 200.00

12-Jul 8:10 15:45 m regular council mtg 50km 300.00

13-Jul 8:05 15:45 m MPC/PRC/GIG 50 300.00

26-Jul 8:00 16:45 m regular council meeting 50 398.00

27-Jul 8:15 12:00 m Audit committee mtg 50 200.00

12-Aug 7:35 17:30 m District 4mtg - Rycroft 320 457.58

23-Aug 8:00 16:45 m regular council mtg 50 398.00

NOTES: KILOMETER CLAIM TOTAL 4761.75

RATE KM's TOTAL LESS GST

$0.59 per km 980 578.20 NET CLAIM 4761.75

$0.15 per km 980 147.00

SUBTOTAL 725.20 TOTAL CLAIM 4761.75

LESS G.S.T. LESS ADVANCES

TOTAL          AMOUNT DUE (OWING) $4,761.75

Date Date

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Claimant Approved

Dale Smith

Meeting Code : M for Meetings

C for Conferences   

________________________ __________________________ ___________________________________________________
182



NAME: Employee # :
ADDRESS : Department: Council

DATE DEPART ARRIVE  MEETING DESCRIPTION KM MEALS LODGING PER DIEM
TIME TIME  CODE B L D AMOUNT EXPENSES

August 30 2022 9:30 11:30 M Grande Spirit DeBolt Project 262.00

September 1 2022 9:15 15:00 M Blossoming Garden of Hope Tour & Grande Spirit 120 308.00

September 9 2022 13:30 15:30 M MD of Greenview Library Board 262.00

September 10 2022 9:30 11:30 M MD of Greenview Library Board 262.00

NOTES: KILOMETER CLAIM TOTAL 1094.00

RATE KM's TOTAL LESS GST

$0.55 per km 120 66.00 NET CLAIM 1094.00

$0.26 per km 120 31.20

SUBTOTAL 97.20 TOTAL CLAIM 1191.20

LESS G.S.T. LESS ADVANCES

TOTAL          97.2 AMOUNT DUE (OWING) $1,191.20

Date Date

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Claimant Approved

Tom Burton

Meeting Code : M for Meetings

C for Conferences   

________________________________ __________________________ _____________________________________
183



NAME: Employee # :
ADDRESS : Department: Council

DATE DEPART ARRIVE  MEETING DESCRIPTION KM MEALS LODGING PER DIEM
TIME TIME  CODE B L D AMOUNT EXPENSES

12-Aug 8:00 18:00 M District 4 RMA Meeting - Rycroft 256 447.00

23-Aug 8:00 16:30 M Regular Council Meeting 76 447.00

01-Sep 8:30 12:30 M Blossoming Garden Tour 168 X 20.00 262.00

08-Sep 9:00 15:30 M Clay Shoot 106 308.00

NOTES: KILOMETER CLAIM TOTAL 20.00 1464.00

RATE KM's TOTAL LESS GST

$0.55 per km 606 333.30 NET CLAIM 20.00 1464.00

$0.26 per km 606 157.56

SUBTOTAL 490.86 TOTAL CLAIM 1974.86

LESS G.S.T. LESS ADVANCES

TOTAL          490.86 AMOUNT DUE (OWING) $1,974.86

Date Date

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Claimant Approved

Jennifer Scott

Meeting Code : M for Meetings

C for Conferences   

________________________ __________________________ __________________________ 184



NAME: Employee # :
ADDRESS : Department: Council

DATE DEPART ARRIVE  MEETING DESCRIPTION KM MEALS LODGING PER DIEM
TIME TIME  CODE B L D AMOUNT EXPENSES

01-Sep 9:00 11:00 M Blossoming Garden of Hope Tour 64 262.00

07-Sep 12:00 13:00 M Economic Development zoom 262.00

08-Sep 8:00 18:00 M Clay Shoot 335 447.00

10-Sep 8:30 13:00 M MD Library Board 186 308.00

NOTES: KILOMETER CLAIM TOTAL 1279.00

RATE KM's TOTAL LESS GST

$0.55 per km 585 321.75 NET CLAIM 1279.00

$0.26 per km 585 152.10

SUBTOTAL 473.85 TOTAL CLAIM 1752.85

LESS G.S.T. LESS ADVANCES

TOTAL          473.85 AMOUNT DUE (OWING) $1,752.85

Date Date

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Claimant Approved

Christine Schlief

Meeting Code : M for Meetings

C for Conferences   

________________________ __________________________ __________________________ 185



NAME: Employee # :
ADDRESS : Department: Council

DATE DEPART ARRIVE  MEETING DESCRIPTION KM MEALS LODGING PER DIEM
TIME TIME  CODE B L D AMOUNT EXPENSES

01-Sep 15:00 16:00 M FCSSAA Policy Committee meeting 262.00

08-Sep 6:30 19:00 M Greenview Charity Clayshoot 350 X 20.00 510.00

09-Sep 9:00 20:00 M FCSSAA Regular Board Meeting X X 70.00 447.00

NOTES: KILOMETER CLAIM TOTAL 90.00 1219.00

RATE KM's TOTAL LESS GST

$0.55 per km 350 192.50 NET CLAIM 90.00 1219.00

$0.26 per km 350 91.00

SUBTOTAL 283.50 TOTAL CLAIM 1592.50

LESS G.S.T. LESS ADVANCES

TOTAL          283.5 AMOUNT DUE (OWING) $1,592.50

Date Date

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Claimant Approved

Duane Didow

Meeting Code : M for Meetings

C for Conferences   

__________________________ ______________Spt. 9, 2022 186



NAME: Employee # :
ADDRESS : Department: Council

DATE DEPART ARRIVE  MEETING DESCRIPTION KM MEALS LODGING PER DIEM
TIME TIME  CODE B L D AMOUNT EXPENSES

06-Sep 14:00 16:30 m travel to GP 210 1 50.00 262.00

07-Sep 7:00 13:30 m meeting with white court Mayor and CA 220 1 50.00 15.00 308.00

08-Sep 7:30 16:00 m MD Clayshoot 240 1 50.00 15.00 447.00

09-Sep 13:00 19:00 m Memorial Garden unvieling 220 1 1 1 90.00 420.48 308.00

NOTES: KILOMETER CLAIM TOTAL 240.00 450.48 1325.00

RATE KM's TOTAL LESS GST

$0.55 per km 890 489.50 NET CLAIM 240.00 450.48 1325.00

$0.26 per km 890 231.40

SUBTOTAL 720.90 TOTAL CLAIM 2736.38

LESS G.S.T. LESS ADVANCES

TOTAL          720.9 AMOUNT DUE (OWING) $2,736.38

Date Date

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16

Claimant Approved

Tyler Olsen

Meeting Code : M for Meetings

C for Conferences   

________________________ __________________________ __________________________ 187


	3.1 22.09.19 SCM Minutes
	3.2 22.09.13 RCM Minutes
	6.1a.RFD Bylaw 22-919 Off-Site Levy Repeal Bylaw
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	6.1b.Bylaw 22-919 Off-site Levy Repeal Bylaw
	6.1c.Bylaw 94-12 Offsite Levy
	6.1d.Off Site Levy Repeal MGA
	6.1e.Off-Site Levy_669_Active
	6.2a. RFD Bylaw 22-920 - NF Edits following comments
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	6.2b. Bylaw 22-920
	6.2c. Aerial Map
	6.2d. Overview Map
	6.2e. Farmland Report
	6.2f. Wetland Inventory
	6.2g. Owner Location Map
	6.2h. MGA Sections
	6.3a. RFD Bylaw 22-921 - NF edits following comments
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	6.3b. ProposedAmendmt SW-5-70-6-6_Aerial_Updated
	6.3c. ProposedAmendmt SW-5-70-6-6_Oview_Updated
	6.3d. Report - Rating Farmland
	6.3e. Report - Wetland Inventory
	6.3f. Ownership Location Map
	6.3g. MGA Sections
	7.1a.RFD Sept 27 High Speed internet a
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	7.1b.22.09.27 Greenview fiber optic
	���Greenview High-Speed Internet Solutions �2022�
	Currently
	Next steps
	Anticipated cost
	Slide Number 5
	Alternative to attain similar
	Low Earth Satellite option for High-Speed internet
	Slide Number 8
	Grant Funds Utilization
	�Potential Benefit to Greenview �Fibre Optic vs Satellite �
	Slide Number 11
	Overall benefit
	Federal Grants
	Link to external programs
	Final Thoughts
	Near future

	7.2a.Mountain Metis Nation Association - Request for Land  (RFD 9.27)
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	7.2b.Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.M-26 s.70.
	7.2c. Full Narative Appraisal Report
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	PART ONE – THE ASSIGNMENT
	Terms of Reference
	Scope of the Appraisal
	Reliance Documents
	Technical Investigations


	PART TWO – FACTUAL DATA
	Market Conditions and Information
	Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 Overview
	Photographs of Subject Property
	The following pictures were taken of the subject property on August 23, 2022:
	Site Description

	PART THREE – MARKET DATA, ANALYSES AND CONCLUSIONS
	Highest and Best Use
	Valuation
	Approaches to Value

	Direct Comparison Approach to Value
	Extraction Method
	Direct Comparison Approach Grid
	Direct Comparison Approach to Value Summary & Conclusion


	ADDENDA
	Addendum A: Contingent and Limited Conditions
	Addendum B: Certificate of Titles
	Addendum C: Land Use and Municipal Development Plan Bylaws
	Addendum D: Assessment Summary
	Addendum E: Certification and Credentials
	Addendum F: Final Value


	7.3a. Mozart Mission Sponsorship RFD
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	7.3b. Application - Copy
	7.3c. Mozart Mission Information
	7.4a. VTRA Level 2 Training Sponsorship RFD
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	7.4b.Application - Copy
	7.4c.VTRA Level 2 Training
	7.5a.Notice of Motion - Efficacy of bounty programs
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	10.1 Ward 1 Delorme
	Form

	10.2 Ward 2 Ratzlaff
	Form

	10.3 Ward 3 Rosson
	Form

	10.4 Ward 4 Berry
	Form

	10.5 Ward 5 Smith
	Form

	10.6 Ward 6 Burton
	Form

	10.7 Ward 7 Scott
	Form

	10.8 Ward 8 Schlief
	Form

	10.9 Ward 9 Didow
	Form

	10.9 Ward 9 Olsen
	Form




